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Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBEHME

Six months
ended 31
December
Bz
Year ended 31 December +=-A=t+-H
BZ+-A=1-HLEE IEXE A
Results E 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F “E--F “E——F “E-FF “EENF
Turnover EER
(RMB'000) (AR®FT) 582,990 979,424 214,480 328,080 140,120
Profit (loss) attributable ARRIZHEBA
to owners of the JE(GE R (B518)
Company (RMB'000) (AR®FT) 157,448 103,489 22,529 (30,853) (63,167)
Earnings (loss) per share BROEH (B5E)
(RMB cents) (AREAD
- Basic YN 16.72 11.99 2.64 (3.62) (10.30)
_ Diluted - 11.78 7.74 1.69 (3.62) (10.30)
At 31 December
W+=BA=+-H
Assets and liabilities BEREE 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—2-=f T _T——F —T-TF —TTNF
Total assets EEBE
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 531,921 1,505,156 1,737,392 1,491,124 1,416,902
Total liabilities ERErEE]
(RMB'000) (ARETT) (35,110)  (1,076,109) (1,406,521)  (1,004,659) (764,881)
Net asset value EEFHE
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 496,811 429,047 330,871 486,465 652,021
Equity attributable to owners ¥R AT Z A A
of the parent (RMB'000) FEIEHER
(ARETT) 501,139 366,135 255,366 331,732 352,447
Non-controlling interests IR
(RMB'000) (AREBFT) (4,328) 62,912 75,505 154,733 299,574
Total"=quity R fARE 496,811 429,047 330,871 486,465 652,021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the Group
during the year is as follows:

Property Development

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 May 2013 and 28 June 2013 and the circular of
the Company dated 31 May 2013, the Group disposed the
property development project — Zhongzhu Uptown which
is situated in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, the PRC during
the year. Zhongzhu Uptown was developed in two phases.
Approximately 72% of its residential and commercial
properties of Zhongzhu Uptown Phase 2 were sold prior to
the disposal date.

In the year, total revenue attributable to the property
development business amounted to approximately
RMB542,138,000 (2012: R\MB904,409,000).

Property Investment

Property investment business represents rental income
and capital appreciation from investment properties held
in the PRC. During the year, rental income amounted to
approximately RMB7,119,000 (2012: RMB7,723,000).
Net gain on change in fair value of investment properties
amounted to approximately RMB4,000,000 (2012:
RMB20,100,000).

At 31 December 2013, the investment property represents
the research and development centre in Shenzhen, the
PRC with gross floor area of approximately 15,084 square
metres.

BEERWR D

ES B
AEEEFAZEEEH D HEBEMAT

VIRER

ZIRMARNRBHA-_TE—=FRA+HBAK
TE—=FRNA -+ N\BZRAENUEARATH
AT =FHRA=+—H2Z8K K&£H
ERFAHEYH*EREEPIRLEWR - %8B
NARHPRERELREM > PEk EWE_HY
2%MEENEEYECEREBHAIEDL -

FR WMEBREBZ2BERAZEHDAR
#542,138,000 (—Z & — — F: AR ¥
904,409,0007T) °

NRRE

MEREEBRARFRBFIEZRENEZES
WARBEAREE - FR - HEWAZHARE
7,119,0007T (ZZE — —4F : AR #¥7,723,000
L) WEMEZ AR BEEH 2 FRE /N
A R #4,000,000 (ZF ——F: AR
20,100,0007T) °

RIE—Z=ZF+A=+—HB REWEEL
R BRI Z i3 O (BEFTEIEH15,084
FIK) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Trading

The Group’s trading business represents distribution of
electronic related components, mobile phone modules and
imported automation products. The total revenue from the
trading business for the year amounted to approximately
RMB33,733,000 (2012: RMB67,292,000). The decline in
the turnover is mainly due to the weakened market of
mobile phone in the PRC. The Group is taking various
measures to diversify the product range with an objective
to rebuild the market share and further enhance the profit
margin, including exploring the opportunity in trading and
licensed distribution in smartphone business and overseas
markets as well as diversify the business into other
electronic component market.

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2014, the deepening of urbanisation and different
demand in each city in the PRC will provide the growth
opportunities in the real estate business. While the PRC
government may continue to impose strict property
market measures, the Board is optimistic in the long term
residential property market sector.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 February 2014. On 25 February 2014,
Uni-Business Company Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire the entire equity interest of 3|
™ [ 8% 17 4 FE $% 5 BR 2 7] (Shenzhen Longshenghang
Supply Chain Limited*) which owned 90% equity interest
of KEMEAREHMEREAFR AT (Maoming Huada
Real Estate Limited Company*) (“Maoming Huada”).
The consideration of the acquisition is RMB300,000,000
(including a refundable deposit of RMB 140,000,000 which
have already been paid by the Company to the vendor).

*""Ehglish name for identification purpose only.

85

AEBEZFEKBEETRBITHE - FHEH
NEODBBLERZDHE TR BEHEH
2R A E X AR #33,733,000T (Z 2 — =
F: AR¥67,292,0007T) - B NETER
FEFETEEBAMN - AEBERRZIEE
Mo LEMEEZ T BREBITHEMDENK
E—IRESMBEBX  BRERAESEFEREREN
B REHDEAREImEN#E  WER
ZlbEE > MEMETTHTSESE -

mEARERE

RZZT—MEF - WH 2 R®RARH B ER S
ZARBRGREWERBIRMHIEREE - &
ERBERAAREEE BB 2 METISE
o EEEGHRR|REZTVETGITERT

495 -

ZRMAANRBHAE-_ZT—NF_F_-+HH
ZRE - R_E—NF_A-+HH BXA
RAR(KARIz2EMBRR) s BEF
IPTHEERTHEEERARNEBREZEEH
E O MAYITMERITHREEERARFTAEXSA
MERXREHERAZEAERAR ([K2EKX]) 2
90% % 1 - W (E & AR ®300,000,0007T
(BREARREINFEHFZIREREARK
140,000,0007T) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Maoming Huada owned a piece of land in Maoming,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a total area of
approximately 93,000 square meters and will be developed
into a residential and commercial complex with car parking
spaces. The project will be developed in three phases
and is planned to be completed in 2016 and 2017. It is
expected that the consideration will be financed by the
internal resources of the Group. Details of the property
development project are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 February 2014.

The Board will actively explore other potential property
development projects or other investment opportunities
that will enhance the performance of the Group. The
Board will closely monitor market trends and risks, and
respond to changes in a pro-active manner, especially
those risk caused by the increasing measures towards
property markets in the PRC.

MATERIAL DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
has disposed its equity interests in Boom Lotus Holdings
Limited (the “Disposal”) which indirectly held the entire
interests of Zhongzhu Uptown property project. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
15 May 2013 and 28 June 2013 and the circular of the
Company dated 31 May 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
achieved a turnover of approximately RMB582,990,000
(2012: RMB979,424,000) which represented an decrease
of approximately 40%. The turnover is mainly attributable
to the recognition of sales from the Phase 2 of Zhongzhou
Uptown. During the year approximately 26%, and in
aggregate 72% (based on the gross floor area) of the
residential and commercial properties of Zhongzhu Uptown
Phase 2 were delivered and recognised as sales. The
decrease in the turnover is mainly due to the peak of the
delivery of the properties was in 2012 and the Disposal.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company was
increased by 52% to approximately RMB157,448,000
(2012: RMB103,489,000). The upsurge of the profits
is mainly due to the recognition of disposal gain of the
property project in Zhuhai amounted to approximately
RMB92,855,000 (2012: nil).

BEERWR D

ERERERE —BURNFREREXAMATE
¥ 49 /93,000F 75 K 2 L o i3 08 £ b i B
BRASHEEBEMNZEEREEYMEREAER -
HE®H» =ZHRA%E s8R —R"EKZF
—tFEIT - BHREKUARNEBR AL ERE
o MEZERBEZFBEEALARABHA
TE-ME_A-+HRBZAE o

EEeMEERREEREARERAZEMLE
EMEBRRBABIEMEERE EFTERE
DI SERBE MAR  WABBNEE
Y TERPBERFHYEMS AN
SREV IR B E AR o

ERHE

HE-_ZT—=F+-"A=+—HILEE K&
EEHEERERERBR AR CIRE ([H
B ERERERAFBEEZSETLR EBY
¥HEE22HERE -  BEFE  F2HEARQFR
HBA-ZE—=FRAA+TRAHBE-_ZT—=ZF~
A4+ N NBZREUEARGRIHRHA-T—=
FRHA=Z+—HZBK -

Bt %5 B 8

BE_Z—=F+-A=1+—BILFE &X&
Bl S E ¥R ARES582,990,000T (ZE—
—4F : ARM979,424,0007T) * B 4940% o
BEETDHWERPIR W E e
BeFRN FHREBE_HEINTECHERA
HEZEEMERAMELNL26% © £5172%
(FREFEE) - 2XBERIETZERRNYE
RNBEHAE-—T——FRNEMK -

KARZHEB ANEAL & P IE I152%E 49 A
R #157,448,000 (Z T ——F: AR
103,489,0007T) © @ F 38 £ E R R
RHRBZYMEBREBEBK Z2HEREHDARE
92,855,0007T (=& ——4F : #&) T
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNwR DM

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In 2013, the Group’s operating activities generated a net
cash inflow of approximately RMB189,971,000 (2012:
RMB255,733,000) which was mainly comprised of receipts
from the sales of Phase 2 of the project in Zhuhai. At
31 December 2013, the total amount of bank balance
and cash was approximately RMB179,013,000 (2012:
RMB196,668,000).

At 31 December 2013, the total assets of the
Group was approximately RMB531,921,000 (2012:
RMB1,505,156,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 65%. The decrease was mainly due to the
Disposal.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’'s total borrowings
decreased to approximately RMB7,018,000 (2012:
RMB13,198,000). At 31 December 2013, the gearing
ratio, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over
net assets was 1% (2012: 3%). The current ratio was 20
(2012: 1.3).

RIE—=F AEELEXEBEEANEESR

AFE (FTERRHEHEXSHEEEF _H2HEE
WA) B# AR%189,971,0000L (Z T — —
& AR%255,733,0007T) ° Eﬂ—%—:¢+
Z“A=+—H8 AXEEMNRTEGELRSE
B AR®179,013,0007T (ZE——4F : /\E
#196,668,0007T) °

RZE—=F+_A=+—8 A£EHNEE
EEANARKS531,921,0007T (ZF——4F :
AR #1,505,156,0007T) * & 4 #965% © & 4>
FERRTERE -

-/

RZE—=F+-_A=+—8 AEEMNAE
BERAOELHARKET 018, 00075 (ZE——%F:
ARE#13,198,0000L) - RZE—=F+_-_A=
+—8" ZISEIE@E\TEﬁ(LMﬁf?,m%EB%Lxé
EFHAE) B1% (ZE——F :3%) - =n®)
Lb®RE20(ZZFE—=F :1.3)
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Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the finance
costs were approximately RMB5,746,000 (2012:
RMB11,475,000). The charge comprised mainly of
interests expenses on convertible bonds of approximately
RMB4,641,000 (2012: RMB5,164,000) and imputed
interest expense on consideration payable in relating to
the acquisition of the 50% interests in Zhuhai Zhongzhu
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. of approximately
RMB669,000 (2012: RMB4,652,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2012 and 2013 was approximately
HK$94,145,000 divided into 941,453,683 shares of
HK$0.10 each. At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the
issued convertible redeemable preference shares was
HK$27,500,000 divided into 275,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each and the convertible redeemable preference
A shares was HK$10,000,000 divided into 100,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs
in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management will
monitor foreign exchange exposure closely and consider
the use of hedging instruments when the need arises.

BEERWR D

Bt B AN

HE-_T—=%F1+-A=+—BLLFE  #%
A% AR ¥5,746,0000T (ZFE——F : AR
#11,475,00070) - ER X EREABRKRES 2
FERAZHARKE4L641,000T (ZE—ZF:
AR¥5,164,000T) R WEB KGR K EHE
FEZEERAAIS0%ESENREZGERNERH
ST ANEH669,000 (ZE——F: AR
4,652,0007T) °

—TE-——FER-E—=FE+=A=+—
B ARAIMNEBRITEBERBREAAELNEE
94,145,000 * 9 £A941,453,683% & % & #&
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7 #£27,500,0007T © 9 A275,000,0000% & A%
B0 10T AR D K AT E 0] fE BB L AN A8
#10,000,0007T © % A100,000,0000% & f% /&
¥£0. 10T HIRRD °
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BEERWR DT

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate net carrying value
of approximately RMB16,471,000 (2012: certain of the
Group's investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings of RMB204,787,000) were pledged to banks
for securing general banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company. At 31 December 2013, bank
facilities of amounts of approximately RMB7,018,000
(2012: RMB13,198,000) were utilised and approximately
RMB4,688,000 (2012: RMB803,000) were unutilised and
available for the Group’s future financing.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 February 2014, subsequent to 31 December
2013, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Huang Shibao, an independent third
party not connected with the Group, for the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Longshenghang
Supply Chain Limited, which holds 90% equity interest in
Maoming Huada Real Estate Limited Company.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 December 2013.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group employed 16 full time
employees (2012: 56) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the basis
of market trends, future plans and the performance of
individuals, which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from
provident fund scheme and state-managed social welfare
scheme, share options will also be awarded to employees
according to assessment of individuals’ performance.

EERH

RZE—=%F+-_A=+—HB A"&EEHNE
THEITHEEFELAERFENABAR
16,471,000 (ZE——_F: A5 ENH
TFREYWEULHEITHEEFTFAARE
204,787,0007T) B H#45 R 17 LA E HUR
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LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

a)

b)

On 12 December 2009, the Company received a
writ of summons from Global Tide Limited (“Global
Tide"). Global Tide brought civil action in the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region against the Company for compensation
and damages of approximately HK$8,834,000 (the
“Claim”) in relation to the disposal of its former
wholly-owned subsidiary, Magic Gain Investments
Limited. Details of the Claim are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2009.

On 31 January 2012, Global Tide filed an amended
statement of claim in the High Court. Pursuant
to which the claim is revised and reduced to
HK$7,967,000.

On 2 October 2013, the Company entered into a
settlement agreement (“Settlement Agreement”)
with Global Tide pursuant to which the Company
shall pay HK$6,000,000 on 3 October 2013 to
Global Tide for settlement of all claims, liabilities
and/or obligations in relation to or arising from
the Claim. The performance of the Settlement
Agreement having been duly completed and upon
the joint application of the Company and Global
Tide, the High Court made an order on 10 October
2013 for dismissal of the Claim. Details of the
settlement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 October 2013.

On 31 January 2013, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, 72 # 3 B 20X YA BR 2 7 received
a writ of summons from & & B iF 7 A0 5 15 F
in relation to the full payment of a legal fee of
RMB18,000,000 for the professional services
rendered for the investigation of an investment in
the Trust Company.

The Company decided to defend against and
obtained legal advice in respect of the merits of
the claim. The Directors expect that there will not
be any material adverse financial effect on the
earnings, net assets and liabilities of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

BEERWR D

HFARRARKE
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BEERWR DT

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank the shareholders for their continuous
support to the Company and extend my appreciation to all
management and staff members for their contribution and
dedication throughout the year.

By Order of the Board
China Uptown Group Company Limited

Liu Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 44, appointed as Chairman and an
executive Director on 17 August 2012. Mr. Liu has over
twenty years' experience in the general management
and sugars markets in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Mr. Liu is Vice Director of Sugar Association
of China* (P EHEZ 1 €). Mr. Liu is a founder of an
enterprise engaged in the sugar and starch production
business in the PRC. Mr. Liu was award as a “Distinct
Entrepreneur” by China Economic Trading Promotion
Agency* (FEILEE ZR#EE) in 2011 and as a “Distinct
Non-Government Entrepreneur of China” by China
Non-Government Enterprise Directors Association* (FF [
EEMEZRE) in 2009. He holds an Executive Master
Degree of Business Administration from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Liu has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Liu is entitled to
an annual remuneration of HK$2,145,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Mr. Liu's and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Liu is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Mr. Liu does
not have any interests or deemed interests in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO").

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chen Xian, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director and vice-chairman of the Company on 12 October
2007 and was redesignated as Chairman of the Company
on 30 November 2007. Mr. Chen was redesignated again
as vice-chairman of the Company on 17 August 2012. He
is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chen is one of the founders of a sizeable property
development company in Zhuhai, the PRC and has been
a member of the senior management of a subsidiary of
that company. Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for the
investment and development of real estate projects of
such companies. Before joining those companies, Mr.
Chen worked as a senior member of certain stated-owned
companies and the local authority. He has more than
15 years of extensive experience in the investment
and development of real estate projects. He holds a
Master Degree of Business Administration from the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. Mr. Chen is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$1,859,000, which is covered
by his service contract, with discretionary bonus payment
as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Chen’s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Chen is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to the
8,000,000 options granted to him, Mr. Chen was not

interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or

underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.
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Mr. Lau Sai Chung, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2006 and was re-designated as executive Director on 30
November 2007. Mr. Lau was also appointed as chief
executive officer of the Company on 30 November 2007.
He is currently also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce
with major in Accounting from the University of Alberta,
Canada and has over 20 years' experience in the field
of banking and finance both in Hong Kong and North
America. Mr. Lau is also a Fellow member of the Institute
of Canadian Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Mr. Lau has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. Mr. Lau is
entitled to an annual package of HK$1,677,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Mr. Lau’s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Mr. Lau is
determined by reference to his duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

As at the report date, Mr. Lau has personal interest in
148,000 Shares, representing 0.02% of the issued share
capital of the Company and he has also been granted
4,000,000 options.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Mr. Lau was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares
or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.
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Ms. Xia Dan, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 21 August 2007 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 12 October 2007. Ms. Xia was re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 31 December
2008 and re-designated as executive Director again on 27
October 2010. Before Ms. Xia was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 21 August 2007, she had been a
member of the senior management of a sizeable property
development company in Zhuhai, the PRC and was
responsible for its project investments analysis. Ms. Xia
also worked for various companies in the PRC and North
America and has over 19 years of extensive experience
in strategic planning and marketing in the fields of
construction, financial and foreign trading industries. Ms.
Xia graduated from Shenyang University with a Bachelor
of Science in Architecture and holds a Master Degree
of Business Administration from the New York Institute
of Technology. Ms. Xia is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. She is currently also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Xia has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a fixed term and is subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Ms. Xia is entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$715,000, which is
covered by her service contract, with discretion bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company based on Ms. Xia‘'s and the Company’s
performance. The remuneration package of Ms. Xia is
determined by reference to her duties, responsibilities and
expected time commitment to the Company’s affairs.

As at the report date, Ms. Xia is the beneficial owner of
Mega Edge International Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company holding 79,500,000 ordinary
shares, representing 8.44% equity interest in the capital
of the Company. Ms. Xia is deemed to be interested in
79,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by Mega
Edge International Limited under Part XV of the SFO. As at
the report date, Ms. Xia has also been granted 4,000,000

~.options.
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Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding the
date of this Report. As at the report date, Ms. Xia was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares
or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 41, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 29 November
2006. Mr. Poon is also the chairman and a member of the
audit committee and a member of nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Poon
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. He
holds a bachelor degree in administrative studies from York
University in Canada and a masters degree in practicing
accounting with Monash University in Australia. Mr. Poon
worked for an international accounting firm and was
responsible for providing business advisory and assurance
services for listed companies. He has over 15 years of
experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition.
Mr. Poon had acted as an executive director and the chief
financial officer of Hong Kong Life Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8212), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") since October 2010 and June
2010 respectively and resigned as the chief financial
officer and re-designated as a non-executive director on
12 July 2011. He resigned as non-executive director on 31
December 2011. Mr. Poon is also an independent non-
executive director of Sino Dragon New Energy Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 395), a company listed on main
board of Stock Exchange, since January 2010.
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Mr. Poon has not entered into any written service
agreement with the Company and is appointed for a term
of two years. However, he is subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Mr. Poon is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Poon is not covered by any
service contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Poon is
determined by reference to performance of the Group and
of Mr. Poon with reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointments during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to
the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Poon was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Chan Chun Fai, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2011. Mr.
Chan is also the chairman and member of nomination
committee and a member of audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has
over ten years’ consultation experience in the property
markets in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Mr. Chan is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Paragon Commercial Development Group, which
is engaged in the business of property investments, and
an executive director of Ritzy Paragon Retail Consultancy
Company Limited, which is engaged in the business of
provision of property market consultancy services. He
worked as a property consultant director in DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a leading global
real estate adviser, from year 2003 to 2008.

BEREVERARNRFVEBREHE - BE
EZIFEHAMTE - Al - HARBEAAER
HAEARR 2REBAFRE FmERTNE
BET o HAEEERT EE/E%180,0007TE
WAL RITEAL - & o4 2 B W0 IE R T AR 7S
BRFTEIA - BEEZHFHEBIHIEL2ER
EEMELREZERWRIBERITHAMETE -

B LB WEES - BEREWERARF R
MEMBRREZEEEMEMBERE  TEEAQ
AMEEMES  SREEAR  TBEHER
BREBEMBAR - r L2 WEES - RRA
FHME 2 BE=F W E AR H AR BE 3
FEMEMESRRZ A LT 2 AR BEEEER
BREMBEZRG - RAREEH  ROER
500,00017 BERCHESDN » 130 M NRE 55 M 1
BIEXVED AT E 2 A BHEAR] B 17 sk A8 B A 1)
R S BAR (F A e

PRIGIEXRE - W+ 1\ RZE——F A=
THEZERBUFNTEST - RAELETA
RARARBZESETREAKENUREZEZE
ehFMEEEKRBE - REEREBERPE
ARLARE ([FE)) METSHEEBES +FE
f] 48 5% o PR 5t 4 IR B AParagon Commercial
Development Group (¢ EMEKREER) 217
4%, - I ARitzy Paragon Retail Consultancy
Company Limited (#£F1R HY % M5 R RS
¥B) 2HTES - B_EE=FEZ_FTZTN
F - RADTZEERT ORYI) BRAF (RE
ERzFHMERRM) 2YEBERBE -



China Uptown Group Company Limited F1 [ Fi 5@ AR /A7 Annual Report 2013 3R

Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chan has not entered into any written service
agreement with the Company and is appointed for a term
of two years. However, he is subject to the retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Mr. Chan is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Chan is not covered by any
service contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Chan
is determined by reference to performance of the Group
and of Mr. Chan with reference to prevailing market
conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not
hold any directorships in any other listed companies on
the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or
other major appointment during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as to
the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Chan was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield, aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2011.
Mr. Ng is also the chairman and member of remuneration
committee and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ng has over
twenty years’ experience in consumer and commercial
finance in the markets of Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Ng is currently an executive director of China Netcom
Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8071), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since
16 October 2007 and of Sino Prosper (Group) Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 766), a company listed on main
board of the Stock Exchange since 29 June 2009. He was
an independent non-executive director of Long Success
International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8017), a
company listed on the GEM, between 3 January 2006 to
6 October 2012.
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Mr. Ng has not entered into any written service agreement
with the Company and is appointed for a term of two
years. However, he is subject to the retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Mr. Ng is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment. The
remuneration of Mr. Ng is not covered by any service
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Ng is
determined by reference to performance of the Group and
of Mr. Ng with reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng does not hold any other
positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and is
not connected with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not hold
any directorships in any other listed companies on the
Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange or other
major appointment during the three years preceding
the date of this Report. As at the report date, save as
to the 500,000 options granted to him, Mr. Ng was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
the management of the Company are committed to the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year under review, the Company has
complied with all of the code provisions of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.

Corporate Governance Report
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COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders value. As at
31 December 2013, the Board consists of seven Directors,
comprising four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Feng (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. XIA Dan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The directors’ biographical information are set out on
pages 13 to 20 of this Annual Report. All executive
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient
experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties
effectively and efficiently. There is no relationship among
the members of the Board of Directors.

The Board has delegated the executive Directors with
authority and responsibility by handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of
the Company, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be taken
by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of
interim dividend and making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions

" under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and

making recommendation for capital reorganization or
scheme arrangement of the Company.
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The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his duties as
a Director may convene, or request the secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to convene,
a meeting of the Board to approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice.

The Company adopts the practice of holding meetings
of the Board regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Notice of meeting of the Board will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
board meetings. Directors may participate either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

During the year, seven meetings of the Board were held,
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The attendance of Directors at the
Board Meetings and the Board Committees’ Meetings is
set out in the table below:
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Mr. LAU Sai Chung At B4 7 - - 414 N
Ms. XIA Dan XIA Dan £ 17 - - 4/4 "N
Independent Bi
Non-executive Directors kHTES
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael EAEBRE 17 22 212 212 4/4 1
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive a comprehensive induction package
covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
The Group also provides briefings and other training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills,
and update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments
in relation to regulatory update, the duties and
responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manner:
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and are currently held by Mr. Liu Feng and Mr.
Lau Sai Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning and the management of the
operations of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer
takes the lead in the Group’s operations and business
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company which provides a balance of power and
authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of two years and subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
("AGM") in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). One of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based
on such confirmations, considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. On 20 December 2013, the Board adopted a
set of the revised terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, which has brought it in line with the new
Listing Rules relating to Board Diversity with effective
from 1 September 2013. The revised terms of reference
setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on both the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The existing
Nomination Committee has the following three members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Chun Fai (Chairman)
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company.
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to
the Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination
of Directors should take into consideration the candidate’s
qualification, ability and potential contribution to the
Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. During
the year under review, there has not appointed any new
Director.

During the year under review, two meetings were held
by the Nomination Committee to adopt its own revised
terms of reference, to recommend the re-appointment of
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company, to review the size, structure
as well as composition of the Board, and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee has
adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the
final authority to approve the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. The
existing Remuneration Committee has the following three
members:
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (Chairman)
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management by reference to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.

Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. During
the year under review, two meetings of Remuneration
Committee were held for, inter alia, reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure for as well as the
remuneration packages of all Directors and the Senior
Management. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The existing Audit Committee has the following three
members:
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group;
and supervising the financial reporting process and
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by
the Audit Committee to review and make recommendation
to the Board for approval of the audited results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2013, to discuss the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group with the management and
the Company’s auditors, to make recommendation on the
re-appointment of external auditors for the approval of
the shareholders in the AGM, to review the fees charged
by the external auditors; and to review the internal control
system of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of corporate governance functions was adopted
by the Board on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance
with the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December
2013, the Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate
governance and the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year under review, the Company has adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 were performed by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit
and non-audit services provide by external auditors is set
out in the following table:
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2B IEREXT M (FB) €t E=B5BMmA
FRARIERE -

SN AL BRED PR 2 R E R B N IF R BUR TS 2
Eff /RN BEREHEFHIINTX

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered Frig AR % et EAEAR
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE-ZT—= HE—ZT——F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
IEFE HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited KA (BE) @TAISEE
AR AR
— Audit services — R 990 1,100
— Non-audit services — IERZEBRTS
Interim review i B2 580 530
Other services H b AR 7 460 112
Total fee paid/payable for the year FRER B2 BRRH 2,030 1,742

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Fu Lui, was appointed on
2 July 2010. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and has regarded to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing

“ Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share

Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Fu
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training

1o update his skills and knowledge.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements at the end of
the reporting period which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement by the auditors of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 46 of
this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to achieve the Company’s business strategies
and the Group’s business operations. The Directors have
adopted an internal control policy for the Group. The
internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and to assists
the Company in achieving its business objectives. The
policy has been developed with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management.
The Company’s internal control system comprises a well
established organizational structure and policies and
standards. Procedures have been designed to safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The purpose of the Company’s
internal control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks or failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Company’s objective.
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During the year under review, the Directors have
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing
and transparent communication with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation. A
Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the
shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of the
Company. The Company also uses various other means of
communication with its shareholders, such as publication
of annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars
and additional information on the Group’s business
activities and development on the Company’s website:
www.chinauptown.com.hk.

During the year under review, the AGM held on 7 June
2013, the whole Board of Directors and auditor of the
Company have attended the meeting to answer questions
of the Shareholders and the extraordinary general meeting
held on 19 June 2013, the whole Board of Directors and
auditor of the Company have attended the meeting to
answer questions of the Shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’'s head office and principal place of business at
Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an

_Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the issued
share capital of the Company and the securities being held
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carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business at Suite 1501,
15/F., Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and
the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business
and its supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower
1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary at the Company'’s head office and principal place
of business at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or send
email to info@chinauptown.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the AGM held on 7 June 2013, the Shareholders
approved the amendments to the Articles in order to
bring the Articles up to date and in line with the revised
requirements of the Listing Rules which came into effect
on 1 January 2012 and on 1 April 2012. A new set
of amended and restated Articles consolidating such
amendments was adopted on the same date. The new set
of amended and restated Articles is available on both the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange or on
request to the Company Secretary.

Corporate Governance Report
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are engaged in (i) property development; (ii)
property investment; and (iii) trading of electronic related
components, mobile phone modules and automation
products. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments
and geographical segments for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in this annual report on pages 47 to 171. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PREPAID
LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group during the year are set out in
Notes 19 to 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

- ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share
capital and share options are set out in Notes 36 and 39 to

the;consolidated financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE
SHARES

Details of the convertible redeemable preference shares
issued by the Company during the year are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of the Company on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 51 and 52 of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not
have any reserves available for cash/in specie dividend
distribution to shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers were less than
30% of Group’s total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the major customers and suppliers disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the report date are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Feng (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. XIA Dan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
Mr. CHAN Chun Fai
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield

Mr. Lau Sai Chung, Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael and Mr.
Chan Chun Fai shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to article
87(1) of the Articles, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are
set out on pages 13 to 20 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed term. Each of
the executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus,
the amount of which will be determined by the Board of
Directors as its absolute discretion having regard to the
operation results of the Company.

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment other than
statutory compensation.

~'DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company had a significant beneficial
interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Corhpany or any its subsidiaries was a party at any time
-during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. POON Lai Yin,
Michael, Mr. CHAN Chun Fai, and Mr. NG Kwok Chu,
Winfield, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are set out
in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED/CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of the related party and connected party
transactions are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics, and approved by the
Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Part XV of the SFO) (1) which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (2) which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (3) which
are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Number of Shares held options held total issued

FrsRA8E FrisERES A ordinary Shares

Personal Corporate Personal HERT

Interest Interest Interest Total EERBHAEH

Name of Director BEfE AR AEIL 3 fHARSE By BNESH
Ms. XIA Dan (Note) XIA Danzz £ (Fi3H) - 79,500,000 4,000,000 83,500,000 8.87
Mr. Chen Xian RELE - 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.85
Mr. LAU Sai Chung FREE 148,000 - 4,000,000 4,148,000 0.44
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael ARBEE - 500,000 500,000 0.05
Mr. Chan Chun Fai BiRELE - 500,000 500,000 0.05
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield RERLE - 500,000 500,000 0.05

Note: Ms. Xia Dan (“Ms. Xia”) is taken to be interested in

79,500,000 shares held by Mega Edge International Limited
which is 100% owned by Ms. Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Xia is deemed to have interest of the Shares held by Mega
Edge International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
nor their associates had any interest or short position in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations which were recorded in
the register required to be kept under 352 of the SFO or
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2013, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) has interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximate

percentage

of total

Capacity and Number of issued ordinary

Substantial Shareholders nature of interest Shares held Shares

hE 8T

g EBERROS

FERR B RERME R BE ZBHNE D
Mega Edge International Limited (note) Registered Shareholder

Mega Edge International Limited (Ffi3F) AR 79,500,000 8.44
Mr. Ho Man Hung Registered Shareholder

Ho Man Hungst 4 AR R 185,600,000 19.71

Note: Mega Edge International Limited, which is 100% PsE
owned by Ms. Xia Dan, an executive Director of the
Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed
to have interest of Shares held by Mega Edge

International Limited.

Long position in underlying shares

ANRARZAITE EXia DanZ £ ¥ Mega
Edge International Limited#H&100%%&
R o RIBEF LB RS - Xiak
T#18 B % EMega Edge International
Limited P AR 19 2 #E s ©

(i) RIGER D 24 E

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Capacity and underlying Shares total issued
Name nature of interest held  ordinary Shares
HEBRT
FisiE EERROEHZ
£5 SO RERME RO#E BREAL
Preference shares:
BB
Best Contact Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
("Best Contact”) (Notes 1 and 2)
Best Contact Holdings Limited EnlAE
(IBest Contact ) (Fi#zE1%2) 268,421,054 28.51
Mr. Xu Deliang (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation
Xu Deliang5t 4 (FizE2) b NI 53 268,421,054 28.51
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Notes:

The Company entered into a subscription and
option agreement on 26 May 2006 with Weina and
through such agreement and the exercise of option
by the Company, Weina is interested in 350,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of the
Company and has the right to convert the aforesaid
shares in 350,000,000 Shares (based on its initial
conversion price). On 2 June 2009, the Company and
Weina entered into a first supplemental agreement to
extend the conversion period for the aforesaid shares
for a further 12 months from the expiry date of the
conversion period under the subscription and option
agreement. By a second supplemental agreement
dated 23 October 2009, the conversion period
shall be extended automatically for a period of 12
months with effect from each expiry date of the said
conversion period unless (i) Weina serves a written
notice on the Company notifying its intention of not
extending the said conversion period for a further 12
months not later than 7 days prior to the expiry date
of the said conversion period, and (i) the Company
agrees not to extend the said conversion period for
a further 12 months upon receiving such notice.
It is also agreed that the convertible redeemable
preference shares shall become transferable. On 25
May 2010, Weina transferred 225,000,000 convertible
redeemable preference shares to Best Contact. On 31
August 2010, Weina further transferred 50,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares to certain
individuals. On 17 March 2011, Weina further
transferred 75,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares to Best Contact.

Moreover, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement on 17 November 2006 with
Weina Holdings Limited and through such agreement,
Weina (as designated by Weina Holdings Limited) is
interested in 110,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares of the Company and has the
right to convert the aforesaid preference A shares into
110,000,000 Shares. Weina Group Limited owns the
entire issued share capital of Weina and is therefore
deemed to have interests in the underlying Shares
in which Weina is interested. By a supplemental
agreement dated 23 October 2009, the conversion
period for the aforesaid preference A shares is
extended for a further 12 months from the expiry date
of the conversion period; the said conversion period
shall be extended automatically for a period of 12
months with effect from each expiry date of the said
conversion period unless (i) Weina serves a written
notice on the Company notifying its intention of not
extending the said conversion period for a further 12
months not later than 7 days prior to the expiry date
of the said conversion period, and (ii) the Company
agrees not to extend the said conversion period for a
further 12 months upon receiving such notice. It is also
agreed that the convertible redeemable preference A
shares shall become transferable. On 25 May 2010,
Weina transferred 5,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares to Best Contact. On 31 August
2010, Weina further transferred 70,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A shares to
certain individuals. On 17 March 2011, Weina further
transferred 35,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference A shares to Best Contact.
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In accordance with the terms and conditions of
the convertible redeemable preference shares and
the convertible redeemable preference A shares,
the conversion price of the convertible redeemable
preference shares and the convertible redeemable
preference A shares will be adjusted as a result of the
issue of the Convertible Bonds to HK$0.38.

2. Best Contact is legally and beneficially owned by Mr.
Xu Deliang. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, Mr. Xu Deliang is an independent third party
of the substantial Shareholders and Directors.

On 14 November 2012, Best Contact has exercised
HK$30,000,000 principal amount of the Preference
Shares and HK$4,000,000 principal amount of the
Preference A Shares at the adjusted Conversion
Price of HK$0.38 and 78,947,368 and 10,526,315
Conversion Shares have been issued accordingly.

As at 31 December 2013, Best Contact also have
19,473,683 ordinary shares of the Company, which
represented 2.07% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Xu Deliang also have
21,980,000 ordinary shares of the Company, which
represented 2.33% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered interest
in the share capital of the Company that was required to
be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the
SFO and the Listing Rules.

Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors
are not aware of any persons, who, at 31 December 2013,
were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5%
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of
the Company and were also, a practicable matter, able to
direct or influence the management of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 20 January
2003 and terminated on 30 November 2009, (the “Old
Scheme”). A new share option scheme was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 November 2009 (the
“New Scheme”). The purpose of the New Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant share options to participants
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have made or
may make contribution to the Group or any invested entity
as well as to provide incentives and help to the Group in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.
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Report of Directors

EEEWRE

Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of
the Directors, the employees of the Company in aggregate
granted under the New Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2013, were as follows:

BE_Z-—=F+_A=+—HLEFERN 1
BHAEETARAEERERE CBREL
RBESIMT

Number of share options

BREHE

Held at
Held at 31 December

Exercise 1lJanuary  Granted  Exercised Lapsed 213

price

2013 duing  durng  during RZF-Z%

Category of participants Date of grant ~ Exercise period pershare  WZZF-=F  theyear  theyear  theyear 12
shikf -A-B RER  RER RER =t-H
KEA RTEH i3] 4 2] 7 % XX 52
HK§
s
Share options granted under the New Scheme
REEET R ZBRE
Mr. Chen Xian
BEhE 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015 052 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Mr. Lau Sai Chung
LAV 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.12015 0.5 4,000,000 - - - 4000000
Ms. Xia Dan
Xia DanZ - 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015 052 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael
i 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 500,000 - - - 500,000
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield
REELE 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 500,000 - - - 500,000
Mr. Chan Chun Fai
BB 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.12015  0.52 500,000 - - - 500,000
Employee
[E8 18.1.2012 18.1.2012-17.1.2015  0.52 12,500,000 - - - 12,500,000
Other eligible participants
EfRERERE 1922010 1922010-82.2013 088 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) -
Total
af 40,000,000 - - (10,000,000 30,000,000

During the year under review, 10,000,000 share options
were lapsed and no share option was exercised or granted.

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of outstanding
share options under the New Scheme were 30,000,000
share options.

REIEEEE - 10,000,000 B IR #E 5 35 K 1 42

AR TSR -

WoT—=f+=A=+—0  EHHETH

RITEEREAEZE 430,000,000 °
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Director or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the Listing Rules, during the year and up to the date of
this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company has complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2013 with the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Company’'s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual
report.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors

EEEWRE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge or its Directors as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee currently
comprises Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman), Mr.
CHAN Chun Fai and Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield. The
audit committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditors the financial
reporting matters including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On Behalf of the Board

LIU Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ferkPFa
Shi ne‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 47 to 171, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 3 CIE S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of its profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
18-March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B E=F

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

2013 2012
—E-—=F —Z——fF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'OOO
BiEE AR¥ETR ARBEFTT
Continuing operations FESEER
Turnover X 9 582,990 979,424
Cost of sales SHENKAR (355,257) (628,113)
Gross profit EA 227,733 351,311
Other operating income Hh2@IA 9 644 1,844
Change in fair value of ?xﬁ%%@ﬁ@
investment properties L) 20 4,000 20,100
Change in fair value of A E SRR E
convertible bonds o - 34 (11,833) (4,139)
Loss on early redemption of REBEDAMRES
a convertible bond g 34(b) (7,333) -
Settlement of a legal claim ERRERE 44(a) (4,746) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z Wz 40 92,855 -
Selling and distribution costs $HE R AR (5.143) (14,468)
Administrative expenses THER (21,516) (25,356)
Finance costs BRI 11 (5.746) (11,475)
Profit before taxation Fﬁﬁﬁﬁféﬂ 268,915 317,817
Income tax expense TSR 12 (113,255) (176,921)
Profit for the year from ¢ MBS &
continuing operations ES o ﬂ 155,660 140,896
Discontinued operation BRIEREEE
Profit for the year from FADR LS
discontinued operation E Yl 13 24,242 -
Profit for the year FREH 14 179,902 140,896
Profit for the year attributable to owners N2 A] Z#AH A
of the Company JE 15 F A
— from continuing operations — REEHERE %W 133,206 103,489
— from discontinued operation —REDRIELE 24,242 -
Profit for the year attributable to owners KA A Z#HE A
of the Company JE1E F As 157,448 103,489
Profit for the year attributable to FEPE I M
non-controlling interests FE15 F s 7
— from continuing operations — REFELEER 22,454 37,407
— from discontinued operation — REERIEERER - -
Profit for the year attributable to FEFE M A R
non-controlling interests JE {5 2 % | 22,454 37,407
179,902 140,896
Earnings per share FRREF 16
From continuing and REFELEERL
discontinued operations BRIEREER
Basic BSIN RMB16.72 cents  RMB11.99 cents
AR¥16.729 ARE11.999
Diluted g RMB11.78 cents RMB7.74 cents
AR¥11.78% ARE&T 745
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic B-WIN RMB14.15 cents RMB11.99 cents
AR¥14.15% AR#11.99%
Diluted B8 RMB9.97 cents RMB7.74 cents

ARH¥9.972

ARET. 745

47



48

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SmeBEaRkEtE2EKER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—B2-=fF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETTT
Profit for the year F g A 179,902 140,896
Other comprehensive income, H 2 Ekas
net of income tax (EMBRATER)
Item that may be reclassified HEWEHNIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzEA
Exchange differences arising on translation of  [F#2 & NS 5 75 B 75 2R 3R
financial statements of foreign operations: EEMERZRE
— Exchange gain arising during the year — FRNE F A E X W s 10,774 3,538
— Reclassification cumulative translation — RETMERENEE
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries to LipEENGIliS =
profit or loss NEEER (33,218) -
157,458 144,434
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  FE{5 2 E W A 4258 :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NE W 2= DN 135,004 107,027
Non-controlling interests FEVE B MR S 22,454 37,407
157,458 144,434
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

As at 31 December 2013 HE-—E—=F+—-_A=+—RHILEE

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BT ARBT R AREFT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE ARG 19 28,435 29,683
Investment properties KB 20 179,800 175,800
Prepaid lease payments HETBFIA 21 228 234
Goodwill = 22 - 184,231
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 23 - -
208,463 389,948
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 24 - 3,174
Properties under development EEME 25 - =
Properties held for sale FEYE 26 = 746,701
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk EAMEWIRIE 27 4,198 18,606
Refundable deposit paid for AgeliEEIE
a possible acquisition BENAEERS 28 140,000 150,000
Prepaid lease payments METERNFRIA 21 6 6
Held-to-maturity investments BEZIEAKE 29 - -
Held-for-trading investments BERSAGZIRE 30 63 53
Income tax recoverable AI UL Bl FT 1S Fi 178 =
Bank balances and cash RITEFAES 31 179,013 196,668
323,458 1,115,208
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMEN IR 32 9,088 541,866
Income tax payable B PTEHR = 147,951
Secured bank borrowings BEIERITER 33 7,018 13,198
Convertible bonds AR ES 34 - 132,405
Consideration payable FERRE 35 = 48,815
16,106 884,235
Net current assets REBEERHE 307,352 230,973

Total assets less current liabilities #AEERASTERE 515,815 620,921
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me PR R

As at 31 December 2013 HE-—E—=F+_-_A=+—RHILEE

2013 2012
=E_=fF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE AR¥TR ARETT
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Ordinary share capital TR AR AR 36 88,424 88,424
Convertible redeemable Al EEHAA] BB BB SR AR
preference shares 37 152,006 152,006
Reserves i 260,709 125,705
Equity attributable to owners RRARIZHEBA
of the Company e REZS 501,139 366,135
Non-controlling interests FEIZ B 1A (4,328) 62,912
Total equity RERBKE 496,811 429,047
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Convertible bonds AR ES 34 - 179,782
Deferred taxation RIEFIE 38 19,004 12,092
19,004 191,874
515,815 620,921
The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 171 FBARNNEZ R BHRENR_ZE—NF=

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 18 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Feng
E:lF- 4
Director

EZE

ATNBEE=SHERRETZE - X h 5

EERREE

Lau Sai Chung
ittt 8
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &%=

Attributable to owners of the Company

REEmBER

—E-=Ft-A=t—ALEE

AN ER AEL
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share  Exchange Non-
share Share  preference Capital  options translation  General Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  shares reserve  feseve  reserve  reserve reserve Josses Total  interests Total
TEETER
LERRA RMEE  BAR  EABGE BRERE HERE  -BER  BMRE  ZRER BE Fo5ItER ]
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RWB000  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARBTT ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARBTT ARETI
(Note (@) (Note(®)  (Note (c)
(hiHa) (k) ()
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F-f-H 81232 386529 184653 13841 13988 11,732 9487 (110800  (335296) 255366 75505 33087
Profit for the year ERETI - - - - - - - - 103489 103,489 31407 1408%
Other comprehensive income FREHZERA
for the year
- buchange differences arisingon~~ —~ RAEHNEIE R
translation of financa BT RRELS
statements of foreign operation EiER - - - - - 358 - - - 358 - 3538
Total comprehensive income ENZEHALE
for the year - - - - - 3538 - - 103489 107,027 A0 144434
Recogition of equity-setfled SNEREEY
share-based payment expenses HRGBERE
XMAX - - - - 3m - - - - 378 - 34
Lapse of share options BREERN - - - - (9673) - - - 9673 - - -
lssue of shares upon coversion of - NI EAT B
convertble redeemable BrkEEakn
preference shares 7192 5545 (3264) - - - - - - - - -
Appropriations B - - - - - - 8,772 - (1) - - -
Dividend paid tonon-controling R FHEA
interests of a subsiciary FiHES 7 RE = = = = = = = = = - (500000 (50,000)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F
T-R=1-H 88424 411984 152,006 13841 8,057 15210 38259 (1108000 (2509080 366,135 62912 429047
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATZRAAEL
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share  Exchange Non-
share Share  preference Capital  options translation  General Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  shares reserve  feseve  reserve  reserve reserve losses Total  interests Total
EETER
RERARA  RGEE  BER  EARFE BRERR AERE -REF  BMER  ZiEE BE FEntER g
RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARMTT
(Note (@) (Note(®)  (Note ()
(M) (M) (o)

At 1 January 2013 K-%-z5-f-A 88424 411984 152,006 13841 8,057 15270 38259  (110800)  (250,906) 366,135 62912 429,047

Proftfor te year ERER - - - - : . . - M8 1STM8 24 190

Other comprehensive income ~ £AEM2ERA

for the year
- Exchange differences arising - B ENEEH
on translation of financial B EREL
statements of foreign MEREE
operation - - - - - 10,774 - - - 10,774 - 10,774
- Reclassification of cumulative - E3tEHE
translation reserve of upon ~ REEHBAT
disposal of subsidiaries to KEFNAEE
profit or loss B - - - - - (33219 - = - (33219 - (33219
Total comprehensive income ~ FR2AUALE
for the year - - - - - (22,444) - - 157448 135,004 2454 157458
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - (43 - - - 4314 - - -
Derecognised upon disposal HEWBARR
of subsidaries R - - - - - - - - - - (3969)  (89,69)
Transfer upon disposal a subsidiary (t EHEATKER = - - - - - (323m) 10800 (78429) - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%
+=B=t-H 88424 411984 152,006 13841 3783 (1.174) 5,887 - (167572) 501,139 (4328) 496,811

Notes: PaE

@) The capital reserve represents the effect of the reorganisation (a) BEARERENEE .Eiﬁ (AR RE MK 248
of the Group through which the Company became the RASEZAMESEAR ZERAR) ki —H
holding company of all group companies comprising W%@ﬁZHﬁ?%?’Aﬁ${KFﬁ?EZ%L
the Group and capitalisation of shareholders’ loans by a
subsidiary.

(b) As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (b) hE ARAME ([FE]) ERBE - FLEE
(the “PRC"), certain subsidiaries in the PRC are required to ARBARERERBE RN (KEKEREFE
appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior ZEE) REEE10% A —RFHEE Eig%ﬁﬁ
year losses) to a general reserve fund until the balance of the EEEFAMEARZ50% @ i H 1% 2 B3k AT BE
fund reaches 50% of its registered capital and thereafter any BEH - —RFEESVTRHEEHBEEEZS
further appropriation is optional. The general reserve fund B EEFMERN  REELZEERE
can be utilised to offset prior year losses, or for conversion —MREES D DEFREMEAR25% 2 KF -
into registered capital on the condition that the general
reserve fund shall be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the registered capital after such utilisation.

) The other reserve represents the difference between the (c) HtREEEREE—Z——F+t-_A=+—HL*F

consideration paid and the carrying values of non-controlling
interests acquired during the year ended 31 December 2011.

;g}zaﬁ&&;@%ﬂ%;&% 2SS REELZ
H o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—_T—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
=== —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS E)
Profit before tax from KA BB AR T
continuing operations BB ATDEF 268,915 317,817
Profit before tax from KEDRIEREERE 2
discontinued operation B B AT S5 F 24,242 -
293,157 317,817
Adjustments for: FEEIFE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FHETE (R 2 8 5 6 6
Change in fair value of convertible bonds EIRA - YN A= 11,833 4,139
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BIEXSBBZEEZ
investments N A (10) 164
Change in fair value of investment &,éf#@%/&ﬁ 2
properties (4,000) (20,100)
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREITE
plant and equipment 1,257 1,778
Equity-settled share-based AR L E 2 AR £
payment expenses WE X RS - 3,742
Finance costs B 75 Al 2N 5,746 11,475
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HEME RERE WS (110) -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEKEE 7 S - (316)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AT 2 WS (117,097)
Loss on early redemption of I FBE o] ] HA AR
a convertible bond BE - ER 7.333 _
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B S EWFIE 7 BEER
trade receivables 2,828 31
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEZREE®R
inventories 2,900 -
Interest income ek A (488) (850)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in FEZBEEERE D
respect of inventories (4,462) (464)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in FHFEYE 7 HEEER D
respect of properties held for sale - (1,577)
Operating cash flows before movements in EIBEBESEER
working capital IR S E 198,893 315,845
Decrease in inventories FERD 4,690 796
Increase in properties under development YL - (268,474)
Decrease in properties held for sale FEYERD 314,752 563,635
Decrease in trade and other receivables 25N H h E W E B R D 9,918 43,688
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5N EH m FEAFIER D (271,185) (378,911)
Cash from operations KETFZHBERA 257,068 276,579
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid SR BEERER (6,610) (5,921)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax paid 25 A B £ 3 (E (60,487) (14,925)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BETIHHSHRASE 189,971 255,733

53



54

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

2013 2012
—BE-=F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BI=E ARBT R AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEWBRARZ
subsidiaries BEMAFE 40 164,094 =
Decrease (increase) in refundable AR EE Y
deposit paid for a possible ENAIRERS
acquisition wA (3Ehn) 10,000 (150,000)
Interest received B FIB 488 850
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME BEMNM
plant and equipment LEE A 124 _
Repayment of consideration payable EEEMNKE (48,544) =
Purchase of property, NEWE
plant and equipment BB K (1,027) (26)
Proceeds from disposal of investment i %&é{%%
properties, net of transaction costs P13 5008
HIBR 32 %EXZIR = 6,610
Decrease in restricted bank deposits BREIRITETOR D = 92,298
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (FPR) ReFE 125,135 (50,268)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
Payment for redemption of B r 2R ES
convertible bonds Z A (326,564) -
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERITER (5.830) (85,961)
Interest paid ERHE (5,077) (9,457)
Dividend paid to non-controlling TRTFHBA
interests of a subsidiary FE |HZE“ 2B - (50,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBDRMARESEE
ACTIVITIES (337,471) (145,418)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH HERBREZEEY 2
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) & inFEE (22,365) 60,047
EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgunsoxE
RATE CHANGES 4,710 (72)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REAZEER
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR REZEY 196,668 136,693
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REXKZEERELE
THE END OF THE YEAR, &Y
HhaERiTaEFERES 179,013 196,668

represented by bank balances and cash
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt
company with limited liability. The shares of the Company
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

Other than the subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") whose functional currency
is Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the
Company and the remaining subsidiaries are Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$").

The Group adopted RMB as its presentation currency as
the directors of the Company consider that the major
operations are in the PRC and it is appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in RMB.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 46.

1. —REHR

FE FHEEARAR (AR HRESE
EHME Y FREERAF o AARRD

EEMARSHARAT (TBZFT]) TR L
ﬁo

ARRAZAMPERNEEIBLEXMIERAF
BHW [REER] —HRE -

BREREARIME ([FE]) KL z2HBRA
ZHMREBER/ARE [ARK]) 5b KRF R
HRTMBARZREEE RBE ([BE]) -

HREZERBRARAIZETELLEREHIN
ARBZ2IGEEMBRRIDBISE - FHib A&
BRAARESEZSIEEK -

ARRIZEBEFZBAITEEZER  MABARZ
FEFRFDHIEH AT FE46 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interest in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HK(IFRIC)* — Stripping Costs in the Production
Interpretation Phase of Surface Mine
("Int”) 20

* HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (International Financial

Reporting Interpretations Committee)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

:

2. BERHNIREBIEEBUBRE
ZR ([ERMBHREED )

#$¢F AEBECEAEEGHIAE ([F
SERIA® ) B ZIA TR REETEE
Eﬁ“#ﬁ%ﬁgﬂﬂ

BEMBREES BEMBREES
BRI “EENFE_T—F
B F R
BENHREES BE-AHSREE
ERAAZ IR kERaR

BAEMBREEE10%

REMBRR  BaLHR
AR BAMBRE :

BENEMER  ES

Dk

ERERETAR RS
BT RSEREA

F12HEET R
E%W%%uﬁﬂﬁw% SREMBERR
BAVBREENENGR  Bagh
BAMBRSEAE12R RERACERIES
BEMBRELRE 3R  LAAEHE
BB G EHIE 195 EERH
(Z2——FEE7])
BRGERF275 B BRER
(Z2——FEE7])

BB G ERIF285% RBERR R
(Z2——F&#E7T) BERRZERE
BAGREE 1R A2 EHERIER

EEIEN Z 25
Ak (ARBHRERE BRARSLERR
ZEg) -2E ZHIRAAR

(T2% ) £203%

* B8 (BERMEREREBZES) 5EA (HK
MBBREREREE)
BRIt &S - MAFE R REER]

BEVBHREENLEHAREARNFEBHE
FEZHBRBARARAL /56 F BRI
BEERETFAERZE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; and

b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

As the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements
or any master netting agreements in place, the application
of the amendments has had no material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the
Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

2. BERHNIREBIEEBVBRE
ZR ([HRMBHREED ) (&)

ERNBHELENEIRER] [FRE - &
ENERAENEAREKH]

A S A G I B R R B VBB T s R R 5 7
$IRE - EHeMAERSRAIE] - H80
BREENETRETANTERBREATE

a) REFBEFENEI2ZR[RTA : 5|
HIETEFENCDHASHIE &

b) X BN AT HFE A E B R
HBENCERATMIA (BmemIA
EREREBBSTEAEI2RETH
) o

AR EET(IEELFIFESEEEHE
ERE AR RBEETRIZSTHEAVHRE
RETHERHNCHEELEATE -

RERE  BERY - BEQARRKBEAHNT
KRBT 2R

RAFE AEBERXERBAGAKRE - B
BRH BMEARMKENLELERMES B
REBV B MEENE 105 L B@mK]
FRMBHRELRNE R [BELH]  BEY
BHREEAE120R [BRENEMER 2 #a]
FRERTERE27TR (R ——FE7)[H
VMR | MEB G ERE28% (R=_F—
—FEI) R IBMERRREERARZKRE] &
REEMERELERE105 BEEMBREE
AIE1 RN BB B HREERF125RIEFT A
BEIERES] -

SHERE275 (RZE——FE:]) TE
BRAEE  BFRHEDFTEBYFBSRE -

ERZEZRAMZEM NPR o
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the
definition of control such that an investor has control
over an investee when a) it has power over the investee,
b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and c) has the ability
to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee.

As a result of the initial application of HKFRS 10, the
directors of the Company made an assessment whether
the Group has control over its investees at the date of
initial application and concluded that the application
of HKFRS 10 does not result in any change in control
conclusions.

>
4

2. BERHNIREBIEEBVBRE
ZR ([HRMBHREED ) (&)

2

RV BMEERNE105 [ FE M BHRRK

EAEMBRESENB10RMABFTEGTLEAE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers, has been incorporated in
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under
HKFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements
— joint operations and joint ventures. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint
arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant,
other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31
contemplated three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly
controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on the
legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity was
accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and
its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the
applicable Standards.

2. BERHNIREBIEEBVBRE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13
is broad; the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value
(e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance

© with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, other than

the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has
not-had any material impact on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 19
Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time.

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of changes in
defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor
approach’ permitted under the previous version of HKAS
19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
All actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately
through other comprehensive income in order for the net
pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of
the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost
and expected return on plan assets used in the previous
version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net interest’
amount under HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), which is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. These changes have had an impact
on the amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in prior years (see the tables below
for details). In addition, HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
introduces certain changes in the presentation of the
defined benefit cost including more extensive disclosures.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time
application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Group
has applied the relevant transitional provisions and no
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) -Int 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

4 HKFRS 9, as amended in December 2013, amended the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9. The mandatory effective
date is not specified in HKFRS 9 but will be determined when
the outstanding phases are finalised. However, application of
HKFRS 9 is permitted.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and 'market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to
HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions
for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS
39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential

* amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove

the ability to measure short- term receivables and payables
with--no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset
and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as
related party transactions the amounts incurred for the
service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not
required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 includes the requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was
further amended to bring into effect a substantial overhaul
of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in the financial
statements.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

o HKFRS 9 introduces a new model which is
more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk
management activities undertaken by companies
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9
looks at whether a risk component can be identified
and measured and does not distinguish between
financial items and non-financial items. The new
model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it
is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance with
the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that are
designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength
of the hedging relationship. This can be determined
using risk management data. This should reduce
the costs of implementation compared with those
for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

The effective date of HKFRS 9 is not yet determined.
However, earlier application is permitted.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s investment
in private equity security classified as available-for-sale
investment may have to be measured at fair value at the
end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in fair
value being recognised in profit or loss.)

Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the investment entities amendments will have any effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Company is not an investment entity.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash generating
unit ("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there
has been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any
change to the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in
the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 39 will have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject
to novation.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives
rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment
of the levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation
provides guidance on how different levy arrangements
should be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that
neither economic compulsion nor the going concern basis
of financial statements preparation implies that an entity
has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered
by operating in a future period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 will have no effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group
does not have any levy arrangements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

A0 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
- the entity can access at the measurement date;

3. EBEAEREXE

REMBRRIDBEELESAMASEMZE
BHMBRELERRE - I HEMBERRE
B ATEZ MR B EEE R BRGIFTARE
ZIBRWEE -

REMBBRRIIBEELKAENREL - R
BYERETHHTARBRSHRAAENE
(T X EFTEERFTEE) -

BLRABEENZGE M LR REEE
MARE -

AARERME2EERFEREEFMS LT
EEEMBIRBRAEMNH ZER - T
ZERER A ERBERNEREMEERMGA
B-HEEERRBELAAER  HME2HEE
BEEEXRENAERZEBREEZERE
MAZEHEAR  IAKEZEEEXAR
B - ZEUBHRERTIEAER SREEH
ZAREALRERERE - EEBMBERE?
AFE2RBEANURN RERNINRS - &
BEFERFI7TREEANHER S RER
BEFEe—ERUEEFAAEZFERRA (
FEGERE2RN A R FHEXBT B G
AR 3657 R AEE) BRIM ©

b 3 N

PATNS X

Lo P HEHREBNME - AAEFERE
NAREFERABBABREREE Mg ABERY
NREFEZEREEUEIRE R F R
HFE=AR - ARWT

s FRBABEBAERANEREN
ZRBEEXABRERTSNAREH
HER(E :



China Uptown Group Company Limited F1E Fii%E B AR A7 Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B E=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls and
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate

that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGU (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss, if any.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

“ estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the rights
using the straight-line method.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
development expenditure attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated selling expenses at the end of
the reporting period, or by management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at “fair value through profit
or loss” ("FVTPL"”), "held-to-maturity” investments,
"available-for-sale” (“AFS") financial assets and loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

“ Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with

any -gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in "profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in administrative expenses
or_other operating income in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity other than:

a) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

b) those that the entity designates as available for sale;
and

Q) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments
and (c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated
investments in unlisted equity securities as available-for-sale
financial assets.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, refundable deposit paid for
a possible acquisition and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

file the disappearance of an active market for that

. financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance
amount. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

3. EXEREE@®#E

BEITA (&)
BHEEHREALTA (&)
BAAEFABRZHBEEE

WA BEERFERZHEER/RRAAEBTA
1Bat > AIFBEES BREAAER AR °

RTFIER  BBAE RERS 205 a %k
Boh) AR R E IR AER S B A
2R

o BEETUHEAAERDTEBRT—
W2 BRERER | X

e REAKERTEREEIRERBE
BHEK MG EEXM BREIME
HPFn zMBaE  TRAAEEE
AHEERE  BARIB2ER IRZ
EERAEPRRME ¢+ K

e WHABARES —HIALBRAADT
ETAZAHNERHD  BEBESE
AIFE395% [T A : RBNMTE]) &
MEDAHEHN (BEHKAB) HERR
AREF ARG -

BAREAARSE U BRENRAARER
8 mEHGFEEEZRAIERNERSE
@ RESERZRNBEXNERFETBREUE
BEZEMENFE -

85



86

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, secured bank borrowings and consideration
payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible bonds designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Convertible bonds issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) are designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At the end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, the
entire convertible bonds are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible redeemable preference shares

Convertible redeemable preference shares issued by the
Company are classified as equity. Preference share capital is
classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable
only at the Company's option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital are
classified as equity and recognised as distributions within
equity.

For convertible preference shares which have a cumulative,
non-discretionary fixed dividend payable to the holders,
the fair value of the obligation to distribute the dividend is
recognised as liability.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measure at the higher of:

° the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months
or less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

0] Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed.

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of the properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the risks and rewards
of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of the relevant properties have
been completed, the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers and collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under receipts
in advance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Share-based payment transactions
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s the functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rate at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on

a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an

“ operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the

leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the-lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that management has
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Litigation claim

As detailed in note 44, the Company received a writ
of summons from a law firm for the compensation of
legal fee which the PRC lawyer assisted an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the
investigation of the fund recovery case.

With reference to the legal advice, the directors of the
Company expect that there will not be any material
adverse financial effect on the earnings, net assets and
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries and no
provision for claim has been made for both years.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group's
investment properties located in the PRC, the directors
of the Company concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in the PRC were held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties located in the PRC, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying values of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually the
residual value and the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation
in the year and the estimate will be changed in the future
period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates such as the future revenue
and discount rates. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment of the Group is
RMB28,435,000 (2012: RMB29,683,000). No impairment
was provided for both years.

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
PRC. The provision of the land appreciation tax is
based on management’s best estimates according to
the understanding of the requirements set forth in the
relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual land
appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax calculation and payments with the tax
authorities for its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
the provision of land appreciation tax of RMB53,965,000
(2012: RMB90,032,000) was provided in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated net realisable value of properties held for sale

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale by using prevailing market data
such as most recent sales transactions and internal
estimates of cost based on quotes from contractors.
These estimates require judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales), the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. At 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of properties held for sale was approximately
RMB746,701,000 (2013: nil), net of impairment loss of
RMB23,547,000 (2013: nil).

Estimated fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end
of each reporting period. The fair value was based
on valuations on these properties conducted by an
independent firm of professional valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of investment
properties measured at fair value was approximately
RMB 179,800,000 (2012: RMB175,800,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness,
as determined by the review of their current credit
information. The Group continuously monitors collections
and payments from its customers and maintains a provision
for estimated credit losses based upon its historical
experience. Credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue
to monitor the collections from customers and maintain
an appropriate level of estimated credit losses. At 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was approximately RMB2,680,000 (2012: RMB6,843,000),
net of impairment loss of approximately RMB7,292,000
(2012: RMB5,172,000).

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated selling prices. The
cost of inventories is written down to the net realisable
value when there is objective evidence that the cost of
inventories may not be recoverable. The amount written
off to the consolidated statement of profit or loss is the
difference between the carrying value and net realisable
value of inventories. In determining whether the cost of
inventories can be recovered, significant judgements are
required. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
amongst other factors, the duration and extent and the
means by which the amount will be recovered. These
estimates are based on the current market and past
experience in sales of similar products. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer preferences

“ and competitor actions in response to changes in market

condition.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of inventories
was il (2012: RMB3,174,000). An impairment loss of
approximately RMB2,900,000 (2012: nil) was provided for
the year.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair values of convertible bonds

The fair values of the convertible bonds involve
assumptions on the Company’s credit spread, discount
rate, expected credit rating and future cash flows. Should
these assumptions change, there would be material
changes to the valuation. At 31 December 2013, the
convertible bonds were fully redeemed and matured
on 5 July 2013 and 30 November 2013 respectively. A
loss of early redemption and an increase in fair value
of convertible bonds of approximately RMB7,333,000
and RMB11,833,000 are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss respectively. At 31 December
2012, the fair value of convertible bonds was
approximately RMB312,187,000, with increase in fair value
of convertible bonds of approximately RMB4,139,000
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB33,548,000 (2012: RMB39,256,000)
available for offset against future profits. Based on
management’s estimate on the future profit stream of
group entities, a deferred tax asset in relation to these
unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes secured bank borrowings as disclosed in
note 33 and convertible bonds as disclosed in note 34,
bank balances and cash as disclosed in note 31 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
refundable deposit paid for a possible acquisition,
held-to-maturity investments, held-for-trading investments,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, secured
bank borrowings, convertible bonds and consideration
payable. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 6% (2012: 7%) of the
Group’s sales for the year ended 31 December 2013
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sales, whilst
almost 9% (2012: 10%) of costs for the year ended 31
December 2013 are denominated in currencies other than
the group entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities at the reporting date are as follows:

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

7. UHBEREEERRBE

AEBZEEUHKTEABETHEER?

5K EMERFRIE - ATE W%%EzEHTL
BEe BEAEZRIHAKE  BEXSRARZ
"E RBOEGEEEe EZREMEARK
B AERFERETEE - yRBRESFEESR
B BIAEHFBRSHBEWEHEE -7
MzEW B TAZRARBEMSRER (BE¥RE
% FIERREEMERRERR) - EERR LR
FECRR - R EZERR 2 BER ﬁﬂw
T BEfE A”ﬁ??ﬂ SORE - BRERE
R B e i E FE B o

™5 E
()  SIMNEEREE

AARIHOMBAREEIINEEEHE €K
SEEHEYXRR #HE_ZT—=F+=-A=
+—BHIFEAEEHN6%IHE (ZT——F:
7%) Rt BEEAINNINE EEFES - B8 E
—f—:,iﬁf A=+—BHIEE#I% (==

—F 1 10%) 2R BAGHE S AN T
REEESFTEL o

B ANEE X BT INEERBGR - AT
EEEERIERER YR LBREEEHE
KON [\ B AT

RBEALEEEEERS AR EBUINZ
BB EZASEEBEEREKEEZERR
Bar

United States dollar (“US$”)

ESR(ESA);
2013 2012
—ET—=5F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFo5
Assets BE 7,491 11,754
Liabilities BfE 4,354 8,900
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

0] Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to US$ currency risk.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year where RMB strengthen 5% (2012: 5%) against
the relevant currency. For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening
of RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss for the
year.

7. MBERREEESERBE @)
i EM ()
() SMEEBREE ()

HERE T

G

AEETEmMHETNEERAR

TERFHINAEEREH AR LIEEINEFHE
NORMES% (ZT——4F : 5%) ZHBKE 5%
(ZE——F :5%) NAEEBEEAERNBL2
WINE R 2 BURRELL R - WRKREEE LI
MEXRSIBA LB T  WREDITEER
FEUIINEHE MATFREEKIER - YR
AfABRE S BARMINEER 25% (ZF—=
F:5%) &9 o

THEHERTAREEBAEE LR ARE
B5% (ZT—Z%F : 5%) &R 2 FMNm G
/R - MARELBEEEHREAR
BERES% (T ——F :5%) $EHFNE
MREREXNEERAR 2FE -

2013 2012
—E—=f —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
Impact on profit or loss for the year HENEBm 2T E (131) (119)

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding
bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables denominated in US$ at the end
of the reporting period.

ETIERREREY AT ERENORT
kA BHMEMEBUFEUNRES K
H A T ROR
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk management

The interest income is derived from the Group's current
and fixed deposits that carry interest at the respective
banking deposit rate of the banks located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits (see note 31 for details of
these deposits) and variable-rate borrowings (see note 33
for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and
the exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no
sensitivity to interest rate risk is presented.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of base
lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China and
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

Sensitivity analysis

As of 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general 50
basis point (2012: 50 basis point) increase or decrease in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease or increase the Group’s profit for the year and
accumulated losses by approximately RMB29,000 (2012:
RMB55,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents directors’ assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31
December 2012.

e B RRME
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7. BBERMEEBSERBEK (&)

miZEK (&)
(i) FEEREE

MEBWAZEREAREE ZEMREMERL
ME  BENESRTPBEREEZRITEKF
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TR (REFHFAME) RUBFIEEE
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ﬂ?ﬂ‘ﬁmo
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M) 2 o B T B 30 EL At N 2 R B 2

AEBERIFEEERY < FER KD RAM G
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REEMERBBRITREREFE -

R-ZZEBE—=%F+-—A=+—0 " #iM=Xg L
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K RFHEER A SN A RE29,0005T (=
T — _ 4 : AR¥S55,0007T) °

FRBEREDTHRENXEHNREBRELE
MEE YERARNZAGFEZHMBIAZAX
ELRAW%?J* 501I%£tﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%%$¥ﬁu
RIERREEF R - *ﬁﬂ?ﬁ?éﬁi@ =%
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
convertible bond and investment in listed equity securities.
The Group’s exposure to other price risk for investment in
listed equity securities is minimal and no sensitivity analysis
to other price risk is presented.

Equity price risk on convertible bonds

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
conversion option component of the convertible bonds at
the end of the reporting period which therefore exposed
the Group to equity price risk.

Equity price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting dates.
If the stock price inputted to the valuation model had been
5% (2013: nil) higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the profit for the year ended 31 December
2012 would increase by approximately RMB3,531,000
(2013: nil) or decrease by approximately RMB2,986,000
(2013: nil) respectively, principally as a result of the
changes in fair value of the convertible bonds.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to the failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in note 44.

The-Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses have been made for irrecoverable amounts.

7. BBERMEEBSERBEK (&)
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(i) EMEETSE R

AEBRABAARERES R EHTRAESFKE
S AN E R R o AN B S AR
FIRE 2 BARE & B 37 8 (8 8 LR
DMER -

AR (& 5.2 IR 1B 18 [l 5%

AREBAR B B h5T ARG 7FA X i A
MEARE A AEEAZRAERRR -

R B S E

THBEE DR ERRE B BAZR
AEERBMET - WA AGBERANKE
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC including Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 7% (2012: 25%) and 53% (2012:
47%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and authorised
banks in the PRC with high-credit ratings.

In respect of the credit quality of the refundable deposit
paid for a possible acquisition, 90% (2012: 70%) of the
equity interest of the target company is pledged in favor
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. As a
result, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the credit risk is low.

At 31 December 2012, for properties that are pre-sold
but development has not been completed, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with
the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of the properties for an amount up to
70% of the purchase price of the individual property. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during
the period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding loan
and any interest accrued thereon. As the mortgage loans
are secured by the properties with current market price
higher than the guaranteed amounts, the management
considers it would recover any loss incurred arising from
the guarantee provided by the Group.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise the rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

7. BBERMEEBSERBEK (&)

RBEERER

EEERDESERMNBETS  ARESER
THFEEERREHNRE RIRSFEY
ARAEENEERHESTFERS RN
MR E - BEEESERRTERZMA RER
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TRFASIBRRIR 0 E R EKIR - AR EY
BREHRTHNAOIEER - ZRDERAEKE
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TREREERH - LHR  BEEREXREERE
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Liquidity tables BB &K
At 31 December 2013
R=B-=f+-A=t-H
More than

On demand 1 year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount

RERY, BB-F RERZ
—FR BRER RERELE fREfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL AR®TR ARBTR  AR®T:R

__Non-derivative financial liabilities FITERKERE

Trade and other payables B 5 RHMENFE 8,539 — 8,539 8,539
Secured bank borrowings BERBTER 7434 - 7434 7,018
15,973 - 15,973 15,557
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

7. BBEMEEBEREE &)

RBESRR (£)

At 31 December 2012
NZE——F+=HA=1+—H

More than

On demand 1 year but Total
or within less than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount
BERH BE—F AERZ REE

—ER BRER ReEnSRE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Non-derivative financial liabilities FITERKEE

Trade and other payables B9 R EM R B 56,115 - 56,115 56,115
Secured bank borrowings BERBITER 13,968 - 13,968 13,198
Convertible bonds AR B 133,125 184,598 317,723 312,187
Consideration payable ERNRE 49,663 = 49,663 48,815
Financial guarantee contracts BBERER 428,962 = 428,962 =
681,833 184,598 866,431 430,315

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2013, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB5,854,000
(2012: RMB7,212,000). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will
be repaid in eight (2012: nine) years after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to approximately RMB6,143,000 (2012: RMB7,757,000).

BEEMIREREZBGRZBITEES A Lt
BHAE S (BB KK —FR | 2 RHESBERA -
RZE—=%F+_"_A=+—8 " ZSHR7EE
ZAREBBE AR R E £ A ARES,854,000
T (ZE—=—F: AR¥7,212,0007T) ° 5t &
REB 2B MRRE - RARIESTHERT
AT HEREIRER CWIEE - XARE
EHE - ZFRTEEBRHREBHESFE (=
T——F 9F) AREBEERBZMHETER
HHAEE - B A RBERFEHRETHE
Bae LB AREG6,143,0000 (ZE——4F
AE#7,757,0007T) ©
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee for loans procured by
the purchasers of the Group's properties. Based on the
expectations at 31 December 2012, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses. As at 31 December 2013, such guarantees were
released by the counterparties and no amount was paid or
claimed by any counterparties under the arrangement.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end
of the reporting period.

8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period for recurring measurement,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s
accounting policy.

7. BBERMEEBSERBEK (&)

REBEEER (&)

et A LM BERE R < B EROEHF
TRARBMEZERMEEFIELFR - A
FReRAARKRERELZFAINSRIEER
EHERSBELRSEE RER_ZT——F
T-A=T—HBZBH XEERRRAAGE
BARB LA FIA o AWM > LA fEEr SR
FUHFTREBEERRELBRZAIEENBEE
52 h B 3R 2 A BE MR RUBUR IS 34 T 75 P JE 42
R BRUFIBLREEBE 2 AT - R =
T+ _A=1t—H ZSEREHFH
R BEAMHFIRBLZFIMNHRER
15 o

4% B % 2 BB A BN B34S B B X2 2 2R
2 FMFTANBREIAIAL S8
SRS -

8. HMBIAZARE

TEREHRZHEARAIAEFENMBIAS
- WEETEEME  HARBAEEZ
S BREABEAAERES R —E=MR -

At 31 December

R+=A=+-H
Level 1 Level 2
—& ot
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——fF —B-=K “T——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETR
Financial asset BKEE
Held-for-trading investments BIEX SR®ZIEE 63 53 = =
Financial liabilities at fair value through & A A BT AEBEH
- profit or loss ZHBAEE
Convertible bonds A[ AR & 5 - = = 312,187
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8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

There were no transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy in the current and prior years.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 1 and 2
fair value measurements of financial instruments as set out

e B RRME

—=F+-A=+—BILFE
8. MBIAZARE &)

RAFEREMBEFE @ A
5 o

REFR AL EE

MBEIAE-RERE_RAAREFEMKAZ
fRERM R E AZIEINE LT

below:
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
Financial assets/ Fair value technique(s) unobservable inputs to
financial liabilities Fair value of hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) fair value
EEEE
EXBLBER BAZEBH
BBEERE /BEAE ARE AREER HERNREIZRAZE BAYE QAAEZBR
1) Held-for-trading Listed equity security in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A
non-derivative financial Hong Kong: an active market
assets classified as — Investment in energy and
current asset natural resources and
loan financing activities -
RMB63,000
(2012: RMB53,000)
NPBEARRBEEL REB LM RAES - F—1% RERTSREANE N TEA
BEXZR%Z - RERGERKBAERL
FOTEMIBEE AREHBERES -
AR#63,0007T
(ZB-—Z%:
AR#53,00070)
2) Convertible bonds Convertible bonds: nil Level 2 Market value basis N/A N/A
classified as financial (2012: RMB312,187,000) Key inputs: expected
liabilities at fair value volatility, expected life,
through profit or loss risk-free rate and expected
dividend yield
AABRIBEAREFABGR, TAKRES - 8 (ZF—=F: E-; mEE%E NER NER

s AR 2 AR ES AE@%312,187,00075)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

TRRARE  RERE
BHANE  EERLE
RBHRR S ek

ARRAEZRR  BREE M BHRER AR EH
AR B EERVMBABZ RMERR
NAERE -
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9. EXRERHMEERA

9. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING

INCOME

customers less sales related taxes.

LERBRASEHETIREPEMZEREK
Turnover represents the net amounts received and FEW RSB E AR R o
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside

AEEFRNEEBITAT -
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —_FT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Turnover -
Sales of automation products and HEAILERME
electronic components T Z WA 33,733 67,292
Sales of properties IES PN 542,138 904,409
Gross rental income from investment S EYE L HEBA
properties (note i) wezE (MIsEi) 7.119 7,723
582,990 979,424
Other operating income H &8I A
Bank interest income RITH B WA 488 850
Exchange gain, net D N S = 85
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HERE k& E o Kas 110 —
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMFE 2 W - 316
Change in fair value held-for-trading BERXZRABZIRE
investment N EEE 10 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in FEZREBERE
respect of inventories - 464
Sundry income IR A 36 129
644 1,844
Total revenues FEAl N 583,634 981,268
CEE
Note: -
(i) AEEZHSWAFRELNAT -
(i) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Gross rental income from investment properties KREYFEZ S WA BEE 7,119 7,723
- Less: outgoings (included in cost of sales) o T GEASEERA) (1,624) (1,498)
Net rental income from investment properties ‘EYZE 2 B WA TR 5,495 6,225




China Uptown Group Company Limited F1E Fii%E B AR A7 Annual Report 2013 &3 115

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—_T—=F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

Technology segment, which was reported in prior year, was
discontinued in the current year (details are set out in note
13). Accordingly, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Development of properties
in the PRC.

Property =
development

Property - Rental income arising from
investment investment properties situated
in the PRC and in Hong Kong.
Trading - Trading of electronic components,

mobile phone modules and
automation products.

10. oEHEFR
REBRPREDERBIEMALRESS
(BMEELBREE) 2R ER  AERK
NRIRE Y ERS B R - AR EAEE
TERE D WA - F ELIERE BN EETS
il B ERE4a

RUGFEEWMIBREDHERRNFELIER
2 (FHBHRWE13) - Bt - RIBEF BB =R
HEAEN - AEBE 2 RERKEDFW TR
N

MEER - RPBEZOEHER-
MERE - RPERFBEZRE

MENESUWA -
g5 - Efrf FHEAN

FEBLERES °
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(@) Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results from continuing operations by reportable and
operating segment:

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

10. ZEEH (#@)
(a) ZHBBRARREE

AEBBBREEB I WARFE Z DR
BERKEDHZWT ¢

Continuing operation FREERK Property development  Property investment Trading Consolidated
EEE nERE g5 L
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“%-cFf -3 -F -¥-=F _F--Ff —¥-=f _T-f —%=f 3 -
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETL ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Turnover E¥E 542,138 904,409 7119 7123 33733 67,292 582990 979424
Segment profit (oss) AWEN (58) 308616 325579 912 25477 (9630) (543) 308,158 350,508
Change in fair value of convertiole bonds ~ ATARERD L EZ S (11,833) (4.139)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BER SRR BEL
investments NI L 10 (164)
Loss on early redemption of REEOTARES 2 EE
a convertible bond (7.333) -
Bank interest income FAFISHA 488 850
Equity-settled share-based WEREE 2 IRIA R
payment expenses LSS - (3.742)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment B 110 -
Settlement of a legal caim ERREER (4,746) =
Unallocated corporate expenses KARARREY (10,193 (14,021)
Finance costs BHRR (5746)  (11,475)
Profit before taxation BRI (HEEERH)
(continuing operations) 268915 317,817
RED 2 TR AN T3 A KB 5K

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment loss/profit represents the loss/profit
of each segment without allocation of change in fair
values of convertible bonds, change in fair value of
held-for-trading investments, loss on early redemption of
a convertible bond, gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, settlement of a legal claim, bank interest

" income, equity-settled share-based payment expenses,

central administration costs, directors’ emoluments and
fin'ance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker (board of directors) of the Group
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

RIAR - DEPEE,SHFIESDBRO B AT
BEHFLOAEES  BFEXSFABEZKREZR
REZE - REELQABRERESZER - LE
Y BELEEZWZE  FEREEE R
AFBUWA ~ NESEEZ AR BERNT
NS PRATWREBR ESHFMNERTBEKAK
FTEEZER,BEZGF o ks FAE
EMEELEREE (ES2) ARBERSERE K
EETHORERE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

e B RRME

—=FT-A=t-BLLFE
10. ZEMEM (&)
(b) HPEERAME

AEREEERBBZONIE
T

BEDRZ

Continuing operation REREREE Property development ~ Property investment Trading Consolidated
NEER NERE g5 &b
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“B-=f _T--fF ZB-=F -F-f Z3-=f _E--f ZB-=F T =
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARMTr ARETR ARMTn ARETT ARMTIR ARMTR
Segment assets DHEE - 940694 179957 177069 4009 9527 183966 1,127,290
Unallocated corporate assets *% @ﬁﬁ% BE
- Refundable deposit paid for TEhEEE,
a possible acquisttion EW;&%E@ 140,000 150,000
- Income tax recoverable - RE AR 178 -
- Held-for-trading investments ~BER SRR IRE 63 23
~ Bank balances and cash - ROEFRES 179013 196,668
- Others - Hfh 8701 31,145
Consolidated tota assets RadEfE 531,921 1,505,156
Seqment labilte AHAR - (B ) 7)) (664) (4660 (1168) (539078
Unallocated corporate liabiltes AOELEEE
- Consideration payable - EARE - (w815)
- Income tax payable - ERFEH - (147.90)
- Secured bank borrowings - ERARTER (7.018)  (13,198)
- Convertible bonds - hkES - (312,187)
- Deferred taration — EiHE (19,008)  (12,092)
- Others —Hfh (19200 (2788)
Consolidated total iabilties mehfaE (35,110) (1,076,109)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments

other than certain other receivables,

refundable

deposit paid for a possible acquisition, income tax
recoverable, held-for-trading investments and bank
balances and cash. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues

earned by individual reportable segments; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables, consideration

payable, income tax payable,
borrowings,

secured bank
convertible bonds and deferred

taxation. Liabilities for which operating segments
are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to

segment assets.

REESB I ENSBREAMDEEIRN B
Hy :

e KRTETHAMEWHIEA  AJREMNEERA
ZENAREZS AJREFAER 7
ERXRGRE cWEMRITEFRRS
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ |EEDHE - AI2HD

AR 2BEENREAIZRDEAER
)\Z%E{’E oH &

e KBRETHEMEMNNEA  BHKE BN
PRS- AEMBITER - AIRKRES
FMAEEFRIASN - FTEREH D EELS
DE e RENHBHARZBBENEEAZE

Eﬂl:l

%’z’“*ﬁéﬁ?tb%f’ﬁ o BC ©
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. ZEBER (&)
()  Other segment information () HthaBER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss AENHRNNEERSHEERFCFT ALK
or segment assets: 18 :
Continuing operation BELLER Property development  Property investment Trading Unallocated Consolidated
IEE NERE g5 OB aff
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

~%-=f “F--F ZB-ZF F-CF "R-=F CT-CfF SR-=F CT-0fF CR-=F SR OF
RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMB0OD  RMBOO  RMBO0D  RVBO000  RMB000  RVB'000
ARRTR ARETL ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARMTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT

Other segment information: EAHER -
Addition to non-current assets NEFTBEE - 2% - - - - 1,027 - 1,027 26
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  BEEMFEZ#H - - - - 6 6 - - 6 6
Change in fair value of RENENAEZED

investment properties - - (40000  (20,100) - - - - (4,0000 (20,100
Change in fair value of held-for- RBERS AR 2B

trading investments NES - - - - - - (10) 164 (10) 164
Depreciation of property % BRRAENE

plant and equipment - 75 - - 666 1 591 1,702 1,257 1,778
Gain on disposal of investment properties  (HERENE 2 i - - - (316) - - - - - (316)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE - BRERRE

plant and equipment (68) - - - - - @) - (110) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of & BEUFE 2 BEEE

trade receivables - - - - 2,828 31 - - 2,828 31
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ~ FEZHEFE

inventories - - - - 2,900 - - - 2,900 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in-—~ &5 2 iEEEED

respect of inventories - - - - (4462) (464) - - (a462) (464)

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in -~ 5 ENE 2 HEBIERR
respect of properties held for sale - (1,577) - - - - - - - (1,577)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. oHEHR (&)

()  Other segment information (Continued) (c) HtbpIEHR ()

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision EHR E ERERE %ﬁé‘ﬁﬁ et AT E 5 &
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit Bl o iEER IR

or loss or segment assets:

Continuing operation BREEER Property development  Property investment Trading Unallocated Consolidated
IEE NERE g5 A0E aff

03 01 08 01 013 010 2083 012 018 200
S®-=F “F--F Z®-=F _F--F ZR-=F “F-F ZR-=F “F-F ZR-=F _F-
RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBODD  RMB0OD  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RVBO00  RMB000  RVB'000
ARMTR ARETL ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ABMTR ARMTL ARMTR ARETH

Bank interest income FTHEMA - - - - - - (488) (850) (488) (850)
Finance costs BBRA - - - - - - 5,746 11,475 5,746 11,475
Equity-settled share-based WEREE AR

payment expenses AR AR - - - - - - - 34 -3
(d) Geographical information (d) HEESR
For the year ended 31 December 2013, 100% (2012: (ZE_F—=FF+_A=F+—HIEFE AR
100%) of the Group's revenue and assets were derived $E@1OO% —E-ZF:100%) KERF
from customers and operations based in the PRC including LB ZWEREEAURFTEHE (BFEFE)
Hong Kong (country of domicile) and accordingly, no (Ffﬂi-%) WL EZINAEE 2 HE D EE
further analysis of the Group’s geographical information is £t o
disclosed.
(e)  For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, (e)  E_E—=FRFT—F+ZH=

no revenues from customers contributing over 10% T—HIEFE - Af X BEFPZW AL

of the total revenue of the Group. REERWAFERBI0% o
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11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BHRE
2013 2012
Continuing operations BEREER —B-=F —T-_fF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET R ARETT
Interest expenses on: FMEMX :
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —ARAFANEERE
within five years ZHBITER 268 4,293
— convertible bonds — A BRES 4,641 5,164
— consideration payable — EBRRE 167 r2eh7
— bank overdraft —RITEX 1 -
Imputed interest expense on consideration ERREZHETE
payable (note 35) Fx (F1aE35) 669 4,652
Total borrowing costs BEER A 5,746 15,356
Less: interest capitalised (note 25) B BRMEFE (F1EE25) - (3,881)
5,746 11,475
Note: The capitalisation ratio of borrowings for year ended 31 s 82— —F+_A=1+—"HILFE &=
December 2012 was ranged from 7.36% to 7.94 % (2013: BARMEENTEFT36%E7.94%2H (=ZF
nil) per annum. —=F |\
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FriEBixH
2013 2012
Continuing operations BEREXK —E-= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARETT
Current tax: = HAFIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERENEH
Over-provision in prior years AT F SRR - (14)
- (14)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A SE AT AR
Provided for the year FE R 60,268 92,820
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHEBERE (1,582) _
58,686 92,806
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (note ) PRI ER ([
BER ) (F5EC) 53,965 90,032
Withholding tax (note d) TEH (Pffskd) - 12,500
Deferred taxation (note 38) EERIE (F13E38)
— Current year —REE 604 (18,417)

113,255 176,921
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
the both years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as the
Group did not have any assessable profit subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries of
the Company was 25% for both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions including land costs and the
relevant property development expenditures. According to
the State Administration of Taxation’s official circulars, LAT
shall be payable provisionally upon sales of the properties,
followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the completion
of the properties development.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared by PRC subsidiaries of the Group in respect
of profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a PRC subsidiary
declared dividends of RMB200,000,000 (2013: nil) and
distributed to its two immediate holding companies and
non-controlling interests. The two immediate holding
companies with shareholding of 50% and 25% were
incorporated in the BVI and Hong Kong and subject
to withholding tax at the rate of 10% and 5% on the
distributions of profits respectively. The non-controlling
interests with shareholding of 25% were incorporated in the
PRC and therefore not subject to any withholding tax on the
distribution of profits.

12.
BieE
(a)

FrEBi<H (&)

BHEe—_ZT—=Fr-_ZFT——F+-_A=+—H1L
mﬁigvé%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁuﬁ$
16.5%&T & -

AR AEBREE =K T ——F+=
B=1+—BI-MEFELETMBEMNEEFE
%Z%%ﬁﬂﬁ’&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%

BREBEPEARLMBCERSIE ([REMFRS
PR REEMRBBREARRGS - ARFHE
B X BT RX MR I 6 R R 25 % Bt R AN TR IR ©

TR EWEERIRE AP BUARERAE A
FEAEL AR o THIBE N IR ERIA30%E
B0%HEIEH R 2 IBE/EH Bl ERAET
ERERIMRARBAYMEERHEEN
o REBEZBRBERBNEHES  REEME
BREER ML MIRET - ZRETKMEER
R BHEMILERBELRERE -

RIBHEGERFIIE BZTEN\F—A—H
o BRI SEE P EE QR TR AN AR R
EEIREEFHYIENR -

BE-_Z——HF#+-A=+—HILFE  —/@+
BM B AR EIREE ARKE200,000,0007T (=
T—=F:8) I RTEMREEZERAA
RIEEHIEELD c MREEERAR (DFHEE
50% M25% R HE) D RIR RBR XS REB
FEMACIL - B B F 5K 2 10% K5 % 55 49
TEMB o FEIEFIEEDS EH25%E/RE) IR
Etﬂ%‘fﬂﬁﬁfcﬁ Bt BERRF DR SRR
FEMFL o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

12. FREBIXH (@)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to RERNZFTE fﬂﬁ HA At B EaBEmRTH
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement BRIADREA - STEWT -
of profit or loss as follows:
2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
RMB’000 R|\/|B 000
AR¥T R ARET T
Profit before taxation (from continuing BELRDRA (REHE
operations) KR ZETE) 268,915 317,817
Tax calculated at rates applicable to profits in &R EEBERFR 2 & 5
the respective tax jurisdiction concerned TS Rt & 218 67,880 82,159
LAT T IR(E N 53,965 90,032
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,582) (14)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A 2 BB 2
tax purpose 9,598 7,048
Tax effect of income not taxable for IERTMUA 2 FHIAZ &
tax purpose (20,967) (325)
Withholding tax TR - 12,500
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of Z NS NGIP-b
a subsidiary Z TR 12,403 4,194
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REARARITAER 2 RIET & 905 104
Tax effect of LAT THIRER IR E (8,947) (18,777)
Income tax expense FriSfisz h 113,255 176,921

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 38.

EFER TR BRI FE38
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Disposal of technology operation

On 30 April 2013, the Company disposed of its 100%
interest in Realtop Limited (the “Realtop”) and a
subsidiary of Realtop (collectively refer to as the “Realtop
Group”) and non-interest bearing shareholder’s loan at a
consideration of HK$230,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB183,000) to an independent third party not connected
to the Group. Upon completion, the Company ceased to
hold any interest in the Realtop Group. As the Realtop
Group carried out all of the Group’s technology operation,
this business segment is presented as discontinued
operation.

The result for the year from the discontinued technology
operation is set out below.

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

13. CDRIEEXEK
HENRES

RZE—=FNA=+H " AAFIERELE
230,0007T (#8& 1 A R 49183,0007T) [A) E2
AEBVEBEZBIYE=F N .:.,\B/\Realtop
Limited ([Realtop]) MXRealtop— & W B A
(#et8 rRealtop%lD Z100% x5 &Tﬂrgﬂx
RER - REKEF - NARTBERBRealtopk
IZEHW”\ o A RealtopE B EAKE 2
FEHBEER  WZEBHBIHE2INREKILE

KECRUIEMREB 2 FRREHINMAT ©

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET—=—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETTT

Result of technology operation for the year BRI R 2 FANFREA - =
Gain on disposal of technology operation HERHEER 2 W

(note 40(b)) (MizE40(b)) 24,242 =

24,242 -
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FREF

Profit for the year from continuing operations has been REFBLEEB 2FRNRMNBHER (GTA) K
arrived at after charging (crediting): T&IE -
2013 2012
—BE-=f —E——F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Staff cost (including directors’ emoluments): BEINAN (RREESME) :

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind ﬂlit}?(ﬁ TEREMEYFZ 8,970 8,915

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRRE GBI 5K 435 723

Equity-settled share-based payment AR 4 E 2 AR (D BER

expenses (note 39) XA (KEE39) - 3,742

9,405 13,380

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments M ETER FRIE 2 B8 6 6

Auditor’s remuneration ZER N & 783 888
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RIERGRGEZREZARE

investments (included in administrative BF GTATHER)

expenses) = 164
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BERAETHNTFENA

(included in cost of sales) (FEASHERAE) 356,819 628,192
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENERETE 1,257 1,778
Exchange loss, net HE R 249 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B SRR 2 BEEE

trade receivables (included in administrative (ZtAfTEHER)

expenses) 2,828 31
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FTEERRZHERRE

inventories (included in cost of sales) (*Jr]\% FXAR) 2,900 =
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in SRR ZRERERM

respect of inventories (included in (ﬁ)\ﬁﬁ’%}ﬁzﬁ)

cost of sales) (4,462) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in FENEERRZRE

respect of properties held for sale BIEED (GFABENAE)

(included in cost of sales) - (1,577)
Operating lease rentals of equipment REcEERS 9 9
Operating lease rentals of rental premises MEMEZKREROHEE 33 193
15. DIVIDEND 15. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed
“since the end of the reporting period (2012: nil).

REE=-Z

- BHA%
(ZT——F:8])-

—=F T A=t—HLFEHRE
iﬁi?f ST AEAAT AR B
& SRR R

B TR AR
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

16. BRER
REARREERER IR

RRAGEEAREBRERNRETRF THRE
A T8I E

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTTT
Earnings 2
Earnings for the purpose of basic and BREEANBRAE ABIGER
diluted earnings per share for the year EARREERNT S 2 BH
attributable to the owners of the Company 157,448 103,489
2013 2012
—E-=F —T-C—F
‘000 ‘000
TR Fh&
Number of shares gy 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI T
for the purpose of basic earnings per share (HERERBRNME) 941,454 863,011
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEEALTRRIZE
Share options issued by the Company /NG S S
(note a) (FfzFa) S 118
Conversion of convertible bonds (note b) ERAmRES (MEb) - -
Conversion of convertible redeemable B AR A B SR
preference shares 394,737 473,180
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR N T 8
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share (MERBEEEFmE) 1,336,191 1,336,309

Notes:

FE

(a)

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price of the Company's shares for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds as the conversion price of those convertible
bonds was higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

(a) HREBE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE ' &
RAARITEEBENTEESRARABRN T
ME - MEFESREER N ERRZEBK
RERETTIE ©

(b) HMREBE—_E— =R —-F+t-A=1+—
HIEFEARNRAEBRATBBRESFNERESR
ARARGHFHTE - Wt ESRE SR F I
EREZS IR EFEER -

125



126

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

16. SREBAN (&)
REAFEEEEY

ZAN/N T%EJ\FWEXQ%ZT%%%%%ZHQ%
AEEERFRBATRIESE -

BENEEAENT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBT T
Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners KRB ZHE A
of the Company FEAE F A5 A 157,448
Less: Profit for the year from B RE BRI ER
discontinued operation ZF R A (24,242)
Earnings for the purpose of basic and REFERARRBHEE A
diluted earnings per share for the year EIEFIRERK
attributable to the owners of the Company BE RN 2 BH| 133,206 103,489
The denominators used are the same as those detailed FItAz o R EXFlstEERERNLES

above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is
RMB2.57 cents per share (2012: nil) and diluted earnings
per share for the discontinued operation is RMB1.81 cents
per share (2012: nil), based on the profit for the year from
the discontinued operation of RMB24,242,000 (2012: nil)
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted earnings per share.

B FTE M E AR o
RECKRIEEERE

BEREERIERLEER 2 FRRMNARK
24,242,0007C (=2 —=F : &) &k EXFr& A
R EEREARBERN AT - REBK
IHREEB s SREAZN BERARKE2.57
D(ZE—ZF  |) MEABERELEFER
ZEREERNAERARK 181D (ZF—
—F )
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17. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)

17. EIRAE (TEREEEMHS)

2013 2012

—E—=fF ———F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind Fe - IENREMEDFD 3,548 4,582

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRRE R EIEER 274 561
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — 1EzS 45 & 2 AR (D

RERN SR - 1,061

3,822 6,204

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies
(the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The mandatory contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,000 per month before 1 June 2012 and
HK$1,250 per month from 1 June 2012 onwards. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, a total contribution
of approximately RMB171,000 (2012: RMB375,000) was
made by the Group in respect of this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a
state-managed retirement plan for all its employees at a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees.
The state-managed retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired
employees. Under the state-managed retirement plan, the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
a total contribution of approximately RMB103,000 (2012:
RMB186,000) was made by the Group is respect of this
scheme.

&g

AEBLHEBEELHBTBARGMLES
SFEHEAIE ENREMEATEETE ([BESE
) BESTEBRATHEINGE BB
RAEAERE - BIEARBESHE XEBSE S
mEARE ([BExX]) kEEESAHEREHERES
Z5% 2 WA (E&EREFMUERELED) 1EL
BHIEER  BEREE ZAFUERA-Z
——HFRXA—BZAIAE A E®1,000T AR
BE-ZE——FA—BRUFAHEEK1,250TH
R-BHEZE—_TE—=F+_A=1+—HILFE "
NEBE UL EIE R BHKLH AR 171,000
(Z=—=—F : AR¥375,0007T) °

RE - BREBI

BRIBEFREIEFI FERBRTE - PENBRRIZA
MAREEMRE ZBEKERIKEFN S EHH
Ko HRBEREEEAFENAETEDL - &
RENREBHNFEEERMERRKEEINMER
e  EEREBEREREFFTEZT  AEE
BEeFHFIINTEEHEMERRARE T R
KREBFIEREMEAE BE—_T—=F1+=
A=Z+—BLL&FE  AEBEFLEED AR
R AR103,000c (ZE2E——F: AR%
186,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven
(2012: eight) directors and the chief executive were as

follows:

18. EERFEITHAEMS

(a)

ESRFERTHRAEME

ER%EREMN (ZF——F: \1) EFRE
EITRABXNZMET

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-=F+-A=t-HLFE

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Equity-settled
and other benefits  share-based
benefits scheme payment
Fees inkind  contributions expenses Total
DRHEEZ
e BER BURR  URHAER
we HuEWAE FEMY  BRAEX ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%TR AR®TR ARBTRT  ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chen Xian RExA - 1,450 47 - 1,497
Mr. Lau Sai Chung AR EE - 1315 47 - 1,362
Mr. Liu Feng o it - 1,673 20 - 1,693
Ms. Xia Dan Xia DanZ L - 558 47 - 605
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael ARERE 142 = = - 142
Mr. Chan Chun Fai iR 4 10 - - - 14
Mr. Ng Kwok Chun, Winfield REELE 142 - - - 142
Total 5t 426 4,9% 161 - 5,583
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

18. EERFETRAEME (&)

(a) ESBRFETHAEME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE T —F+-A=+-RHI5E

Salaries, Retirement  Equity-settled
allowances and benefits ~ share-based
other benefits scheme payment
Fees inkind  contributions eXpenses Total
DEREE
o 2R BARET DRHAER
e EtEWNE SEE MXAREX aE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  AR%TT  ARBTT  ARBTR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chen Xian BELE - 1,355 48 998 2,401
Mr. Lau Sai Chung At mgs - 1,243 18 499 1,790
Mr. Liu Feng (appointed on 17 August 2012) 2% 4 (R=ZE——F
NAT+BEZE) - 558 - - 558
Mr. Xiong Jianrui (resigned on 29 June 2012)  #eglin%edk (R=5——#
ARAZTNEREE) - 290 26 499 815
Ms. Xia Dan Xia DanZ T - 452 40 499 991
Independent non-executive directors BUFBTES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael ARELE 145 - - 62 207
Mr. Chan Chun Fai RiRBLE 145 - - 62 207
Mr. Ng Kwok Chun, Winfield REFLE 145 = = 62 207
Total @t 435 3,898 162 2,681 7,176

Mr. Lau Sai Chung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group

during the two years ended 31 December 2013.

M DERENMARNRRITHAE - A EFHE
e BREERTRAZARERSE <M -

BE T =Ft+t_RA=t—"HIMAEFE -
MEIRITHRAEBREETHEXRENELE
BTSN 2 A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2012: four) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out
in the above. The emolument of the remaining two (2012:

18. EERFETRAEME (&)

(b) EREEEM=

ZN

|

=

Al

SEREEsFMENALH =R (=ZF
—F W) RARBIZEERETETHA
BEZFME R EXINE - FErmE (=

——F %) FERALZHEBMT

one) individual was as follows:

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind & ~ 2B N EMEYHZE 1,164 587
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRNEFET B 5% 94 48
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  DAME= & E 7 LAK(D
AEBRNITNRAX = 374
1,258 1,009
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHWNEANFUATEHEA :
No. of individuals
ETIHH
2013 2012
—E—=5f —E——4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to TZEAM1,000,0007T (HBE
approximately RMB791,000 REAKEH791,0007T
(2012: RMB807,000)) T4
AR ¥807,0007T)) 2 =

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB791,000 to RMB1,187,000
(2012: RMB807,000 to RMB1,210,000))

711,000,001 7. &
75 #1,500,0007T (FBE
R ANREET91,000TE
AFR#1,187,0007T
(ZZ2E—=F : AR
807,000 E
AFE#1,210,0007T)) -

(c) No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2013.

(c)

BHE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItAA
FE AEEMERAARREEREE
TBRAESZEHFEEINMESIERR
SIMASMAREE 2 B HIEARE
BwE o



China Uptown Group Company Limited F1E Fii%E B AR A7 Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e D EwR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ - BWERKE

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Motor
buildings improvements  Equipment Furniture vehicles Total
HELi
RETF HEEE B #E RE g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR%TR AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%TR AR%T:n
CoST AR
At 1 January 2012 WZE——%F
—A—H 33,253 4919 2,510 304 946 41,932
Exchange realignment EXER (196) ®) B) @) (3) 212)
Additions NE - - - 26 - 26
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F
+-A=1+—H 33,057 4911 2,507 328 943 41,746
Exchange realignment BN = (514) 22) ®) 6) (10) (560)
Additions e - - 8 2 1,017 1,027
Disposals HE - - - - (373) (373)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries % /& 7 ] 8 = = (2,247) (172) (908) (3,327)
At 31 December 2013 RZT-=%
+ZRA=1t—H 32,543 4,889 260 152 669 38,513
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2iE
At 1 January 2012 W%
—A—-H 3,372 3,581 2,494 237 629 10,313
Exchange realignment N = (17) B3) 3) 2) (3) (28)
Provided for the year FRNEE 715 918 16 30 99 1,778
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F
+-A=1—H 4,070 4,496 2,507 265 725 12,063
Exchange realignment B =R (56) @1 ) (5) ) (96)
Provided for the year FRNEE 707 44 3 21 112 1,257
Eliminated on disposals R i - = = = (359) (359)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 5 & B 7 1% i34 - - (2,247) (129 (411 (2,787)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F
+-R=1t—H 4721 4,839 256 152 60 10,078
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=
+-A=1—H 27,822 - 4 - 609 28,435
At 31 December 2012 RZE--F
+-A=1—H 28,987 415 - 63 218 29,683
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.
(Continued)
(a) The above items of property, plant and equipment (a)

are depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, at
the following useful lives or rates per annum:

Leasehold land and

buildings
Leasehold

improvements
Equipment 18% to 25%
Furniture 18% to 25%

Motor vehicles

18% to 30%

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 50 years
Over the shorter of the term
of the leases or 5 years

(b)  The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings (b)

shown above comprises:

W% BMERRE (&)

AEBME - BEMREEREB G RE
AEFERMERIRA T FRUERETE ¢

HETHREFT S0FsIRfHLFH
(ABRI2E A%E)

HEEE 54 s} 3R A 4 & 5
(ABEE A%E)

] 18% % 25%

R 18% %25%

E 18% %30%

NERELHMETZRmERRE

2013 2012
—E—=£F —F——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARBTFT
Medium-term lease held in: BRAEFEHBEOR
— Hong Kong — BB 16,471 17,329
— the PRC —f 11,351 11,658
27,822 28,987
20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REYF
2013 2012
—ZE—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
FAIR VALUE ARE
At beginning of the year NG 175,800 162,025
Exchange realignment b H =8 - (31)
Disposals during the year (note d) REANHE (FEEd) - (6,294)
Net increase in fair value recognised REHRER AREFERE
in profit or loss 4,000 20,100
At end of the year N4 179,800 175,800
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Notes:
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

20. ®REYHE &)
B -
(a) LA EE Y 2 BREE SR

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Medium-term leases held in: AR EEAR
— the PRC — 179,800 175,800

(b)

All of the Group’s investment properties are held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes and are measured using the fair value model.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2013 and 2012 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (”Vigers”),
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
to the Group. Vigers has appropriate qualifications and has
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuations have been arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. There has
been no change from the valuation technique used in the
prior year.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

6 ASBzEARANEHEESTEARNES
HAB AR E R A ORBE RAA A B E

(0) RZE—=Fr_FT——F+-_A=+—H &
ElZ&ﬁ%%Z‘ﬁﬁEwﬁﬁ$Eliﬂﬁ
izﬁihTE%ﬁ@%mﬂﬁééﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

A ([EAEET ) 27 b 1EH - BURET A fEE
%%ﬁ%'ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m%2ﬁﬁ%¥%%

% o fHETI2BE — B MG 2 B E 2T
%Fﬂﬁ%ﬁ LR FEATE AR EER

mlﬁ%io

MN-B—=F+—-"FA=+—8  AEEZKEY

EFBRAAEBSHRERINEMOT

Fair value

Level 2 as at 31/12/2013

R=-ZB—=%F

+=BA=+—H

-t ZARE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥ T

Commercial property units located in the PRC (RN i 7 E= v 179,800 179,800

There were no transfers into or out of Level 2 during the year.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements of investments properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in PRC are
determined using market comparison approach by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square metre basis using market data which is publicly
available.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain investment
properties located in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying
values of approximately RMB6,294,000 (2013: nil) were
disposed of at a total consideration of approximately
RMB6,610,000 (2013: nil). A gain of approximately
RMB316,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2012.

FRWEF-_HEAREBLEBR

BEMEE — MR ETEMER 2 EERM &
WABUR °

NRPEZIREMEAABHERARE AR
BB - BEALLBYE S BAEE (FPK
Bi8) - BRI LLEIAREE

(d) HE_ZT——F+_A=+—RHLEE R
BB 2 BIRHEELN AR%6,294,0007T (ZF—
=F E) ETREVENLBREBOBARE
6,610,000 (=2 —=4F : &) HE - EREZE
—E——F+-A=1+— EiifZ@mﬁéﬁ
iﬁ;f@Wﬁ%AE%NGWWﬂ ==
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

21. HERMNKE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T—CfF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®T T ARETT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REBz L ERAEZHEE
on land use rights are held under TE A FRIE TP A B LA AR HR
medium-term leases in the PRC and MEFBEL D ITIERSE A
analysed for reporting purposes as: BAAT
Current assets mE & E 6 6
Non-current assets EMBEE 228 234
234 240
22. GOODWILL 22. BE
RMB'000
AREFT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE R K ARE E
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 RZZE——F—HA—HBK
T+ -H=1—H 184,231
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(a)) & BB A B i eE (P aE40(a)) (184,231)
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+"A=+—H -
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AHHERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEERERTE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET T AR¥TTT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost AR 2 JE E T 8 55 51,338 51,338
Less: impairment loss recognised B BHERREEE (51,338) (51,338)
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—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AHHERE (&)
(Continued)

(@)  The available-for-sale investments are measured at (@) REBEBRZAHEEREZFFERER
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting AR EZRERE  AAEIME
period as the range of reasonable fair value WEBAAEMNEZEERK  HARAE
estimates is so wide that the directors of the ERBERABEHAASERE -
Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

(b)  Available-for-sale investments amounting b)) AHEERELSEHNAARE
to approximately RMB51,338,000 (2012: 51,338,000t (Z T —ZF: AR®
RMB51,338,000) represents the Group’s 18.52% 51,338,0007T) EKE.FMEZ F’%’AEF'
unlisted equity interest in the registered capital BIFMIE LT AR - Bl#EER (HHE) T
of Goldwiz Huarui (Tongling) Electronic Material ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ Tﬁﬁnfﬁﬁﬁzﬁzm 52% 3
Company Limited* (F} # Z£ I (81 (%) & F 5 £ s ZRRERERARBESHEE
AR A7), a company incorporated in the PRC, ER-ZEERAF T _AKRIEEBEE-
the operation of which has been suspended since EHit » WEKAEZHR AT FEEL
December 2005 due to critical liquidity problem. BE - BEEHER  BERRIL EER
Accordingly, the investment cost had been fully o
impaired in previous years. Up to the end of the
reporting period, there is no change as to the status
of the investment.

* The English name is for identification purpose only. * B A E MR

24. INVENTORIES 24. FH

2013 2012

—E-=fF —EF——4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Merchandise Bl - 3,174

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain
impaired inventories were sold at profit. As a result, a
reversal of impairment of inventories of approximately
RMB4,462,000 (2012: RMB464,000) has been recognised
and included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

HE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HLFE &F
EREZEECEERWHEHEM - At B8
2B EREE A AR EA4,462,000 (ZF— =

F: AR®464,000T) EERLEBREHSE

TE—=F+_A=+—BULFEZHFREER

RIA o

135



136

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

25. EEYE

2013 2012

—E—=£F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBFT

At the beginning of the year REH) - 971,642
Additions NE - 268,474
Interest capitalised (note 11) EREFE (BIEE11) - 3,881

Transfer to properties held for MR TRERSGFEYE

sale upon completion - (1,243,997)

At the end of the year R 45

26. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale were situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale at 31 December 2012
were stated at cost or net realisable value.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain impaired
properties held for sale were sold at profit. As a result, a
reversal of impairment loss in respect of properties held for
sale of approximately RMB1,577,000 (2013: nil) has been
recognised and included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, properties held for sale to the
amount of approximately RMB42,902,000 (2013: nil) was
stated at net realisable value.

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. FEWE

AEEYEENELOLNTE - KB
+=A=+—8 FASENELRARTE
HEEES5) -

 E—E——F+_A=+—BHItFE BT
EREFEVECEL T ESEF - ALt - &F
EYEZREBEBELOHARE,577,0007T
(ZF—=F ' &) EERMEFAHE_Z—
—E+ A=+ BHUEFEZHRABERA -

RZEBE——F+_A=1+—"H " BEOARK
42,902,0007 (ZZE—=F : &) NEFEMEIR
Al &35 R B BR -

27. BEEREMBERRE

2013 2012

—E—=F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBETTT
Trade receivables Z 5 W EIE 9,972 12,015
Less: impairment loss recognised B BERREEE (7,292) (5,172)
2,680 6,843
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEM R - e M E bR EIE 2,022 14,330
Less: impairment loss recognised B BERREEE (504) (2,567)
1,518 11,763

4,198 18,606
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Customers from the trading segment are normally required
to settle the debts within one to two months upon issue
of invoices, except for certain well established customers
where the terms are extended to two to three months.

Trade receivables from rental income are due for settlement
in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements
entered into with the tenants.

Trade receivables from the sale of properties are received
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and
purchase agreement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

(a)

The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of impairment loss recognised
presented based on invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates.

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

27. EFREMERIE (&)

KEEZHDMZEPRIERER  —REF2—
:Zéﬂﬂ‘%i%%k BRTETERYRFBARE

ZEPAIEREMEZ=EA -

KEBREBAZE S RKHIATIIREHRF R
Z ABRA R 2 AR BB S AT o

REEHEME LB HEBGRIBNIRIEBEE E W
B ARRINER « BN EAEER - NEEI AR
ﬁfﬂ—ﬁﬁﬁauu ©

(@ HATK/REERRERAY FOZSWA
EREH) 27 285 BWHIA (BN
EERRERER) ZRED

2013 2012

—E-=F —E-_F

RMB’000 Rl\/lB 000

ARETR ARBFT

Within 60 days 60K 105 6,843
91-365 days 91X E|365K 2,575 —
2,680 6,843

(b)  Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance b) RZZE—Z=F+ZA=+—H &A&H

were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB2,575,000 as at 31 December
2013 (2012: nil) which were past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group had not
provided for impairment loss. Trade receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

ES5RWNABEHEERIATEOAR
#2,575,0000C (Z & — — % : E)mﬁ
WHIB » ZRERREBHERE ™
AEBUVEHHEELREBERE - X
BHEERECESBRRFEBHEZR
FER EBEXA&KIAZEBRESL -

BB HERBIE 2 B 7 WA 2 fRik

2013 2012

—ET-=F —T—CF

RMB’000 RI\/IB 000

ARET T AR¥TT

91-365 days 91X F|365K 2,575 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EFREMEBWRIER (&)
(Continued)
(0 The movements in impairment losses recognised in (0 REZEWFEERZBEEEZSN
respect of trade receivables are as follows: S &
2013 2012
—E—=5F —ZT—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
At beginning of the year REH] 5,172 5,187
Exchange realignment ME H =58 (157) (46)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries & M B A BB 8E (551) -
Recognised during the year RERER 2,828 31
At end of the year 4L 7.292 5,172
At 31 December 2013, included in the impairment RZE—=F+ZH=+—8" ' 5T ARES
loss are individually impaired trade receivables BrERNBEREESEVRIBERBEENR
with an aggregate balance of approximately AR 729200t (ZFTE——F: AR
RMB7,292,000 (2012: RMB5,172,000) which are 5,172,0007T) * B SRWFIRTIREARBE °
due to long outstanding.
(d)  The movements in impairment losses recognised in (d FECHEIZREBEZSHT
respect of other receivables are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMT ARETT
At beginning of the year REH] 2,567 2,575
Exchange realignment ME H =58 (11) (8)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries o B B A B B EE (2,052) -
At end of the year MNE4 504 2,567
At 31 December 2013, included in the impairment RZE—=F+_A=+—H " T AR
loss are individually impaired other receivables B B8 2 85l B R E H th FE YR I8 4 4
with an aggregate balance of approximately wE A B AR 504,000 (ZF — =
RMB504,000 (2012: RMB2,567,000) which are due F: AR¥2,567,0007T) " % & 5B

to long outstanding. HRIBILEHIKRFE o
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REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT PAID FOR A
POSSIBLE ACQUISITION

On 27 August 2013, the Group entered into
a non-legally binding letter of intent with an
independent third party (the “Potential Vendor "),
in relation to a possible acquisition (the “Possible
Acquisition 1”) from the Potential Vendor | of 90%
equity interest in a target company (the “Target
Company |”) and the shareholder’s loan due by
the Target Company | which is principally engaged
in property development. The Target Company |
currently owns a piece of land in Maoming, the PRC
which is under development.

According to the letter of intent, the final
consideration of the Possible Acquisition | will be
subject to the valuation by a professional valuer
to be engaged by the Group. A refundable cash
deposit of RMB140,000,000 had been paid by
the Group to the Potential Vendor | in August
2013, whilst 90% of the Target Company I's equity
interest was pledged in favor of the Group. Details
are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 27 August 2013, 28 August 2013 and 30
December 2013.

The deposit is classified as current assets as the
amount will be refunded to the Group within 10
days if no pledged agreements to signed on or
before 12 September 2013.

On 25 February 2014, the Group entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with Potential
Vendor | to acquire 90% equity interest in the
Target Company .

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE
28. AREMBEERZENARERE

(@ RZE—=FNA=Z++tBH ' AEEH
—%ﬁ*”_ﬁﬁfﬁfmbﬁﬁ@ﬁ
BEEHIAEEWE—HEEZAR ([BZ
AﬂlJ)Z%%Hﬂ%(FT LU EE EIEI])
NEMEERRBEZQRIEMNZ
J&%EMJ_L—T EEBOR NI ZEM
£-BEZRQ TIEEB—I?—rﬁ_TFBaLLE/\q].
ZFEER L o

BEERE  AJkEEEIZZERE
BEAEEETRECEXMERMTE
TZHBELUEE - AEBEER T —
—FNARBEBAIXNAIRERSE
& AR ¥140,000,0007T © MmBEARIZ
VWERAAEBAZEZEATUNER -
HBEENARRBHA-_ZT—=F)\A
—++tHA - ZE—Z=ZFN\A=+N\BX
—E—ZF+ZRA=FTRHZRE -

MR -ZE—=F LA+ B ZALE
BRI EWHZE AR FEHRI0B AR

CIAREE  FHREEDBSRBDEE

EA —mE-_H= ‘HSEI =i
EEEI.:T_L \/E\EJ@% BB E B

EﬂTIZ9O%$¥
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28. REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT PAID FOR A
POSSIBLE ACQUISITION (Continued)

(b) On 5 December 2012, the Group entered into
a non-legally binding letter of intent with an
independent third party (the “Potential Vendor I1"),
in relation to a possible acquisition (the “Possible
Acquisition 1I”) from the Potential Vendor Il of
70% equity interest in a target company (the
“Target Company II”) which is principally engaged
in property development. The Target Company I
currently owns a piece of land in Shenzhen, the
PRC which is not yet developed.

According to the letter of intent, the final
consideration of the Possible Acquisition Il will be
subject to the valuation by a professional valuer
to be engaged by the Group. A refundable cash
deposit of RMB150,000,000 had been paid by the
Group to the Potential Vendor Il in December 2012.
Details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 5 December 2012.

No formal sales and purchase agreement to be
signed on or before 15 April 2013, the deposit was
fully refunded during the year ended 31 December
2013.

29. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments comprise:

28. ARENBEHE2ENARERS
(&)

by RZE——F+_-_ARH KEBHHE—
BRI FE=F ([BEEAN]) StEHEM
BEEFIAEKE—MBZAR ([BZ
RNA]) 270% A4 (A gediBE =181 ])
EIN—ERENRAZEME - BIZ
NAIBREFEAE —BAL R BORIIE & &
FIEEZ L1t o

BIEEME  JERNBEHEIZZERE
BEAEEE TFTRE 2 EXEMBERMTE
TZEESUEE - AEEER_T—
—F+-_AREBEEHIZNEEAAR
#150,000,0007C Z AR Bl & ° FI5 S
RAAGBHA-_Z——F+-_AAH

2R -

MR —_ZE—=FEmA+AAKZALE

BIIRBEHS  ARSEREEC

T—=F+-_A=+—BIFERHEL
29. EEZIHARKRE
BEZEIHMARENT

2013 2012

—E—=5F —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Trust fund investments S ESKE 60,000 150,704
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRERREEE (60,000) (150,704)

Trust fund investments represented funds placed by two
PRC subsidiaries with Kinghing Trust & Investment Co.,

Ltd.x (B EEERERKD AR AR (the “Trust Company”),

an independent trust investment company in the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant contracts, the funds were for a
fixed term up to May 2006 and the Group’s return on the
trust funds is limited to an annual rate of return of 4%.

EREE IR E TH M B A B B B 0 B —
AR EERERERNBRAR ([FEAF])
B ERRERRMRMZES - REAH
B8 ZETRETEHRES IR _FFX
FRAREM - AKREARZEAESDNFEHE
BRE/EF4% -
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29. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

In early 2006, the Company was informed that the Trust
Company has been ordered by the relevant authority to
suspend its operation. The assets of the Trust Company
are now being managed by the China Construction Bank.
The two PRC subsidiaries have registered with the China
Construction Bank its entitlement to the fund. Despite
the Group's repeated attempts for confirmation of the
repayment schedule, neither the China Construction Bank
nor the local government has provided any information.
In view of the absence of sufficient information to
substantiate the recoverability of the trust fund, as at
30 June 2006, the directors of the Company consider
to recognise an impairment loss of approximately
RMB60,000,000 (2012: RMB150,704,000) on trust fund
investments. Up to the end of the reporting period, there
is no change as to the status of the investment.

Due to the disposal of Realtop Group (note 40(b)) on
30 April 2013, the cost of held-to-maturity investments
and impairment loss recognised were both decreased by
RMB90,704,000.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

30. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments comprise:

29. HEZIHMBERE &)

RIZZBEEXRFEY ARAREBNZELRARE
WEBKBHSFELER  EEENEAHTE
BREBTEE ZWEBRAKBARE AP E
BRIBITECZESZERE #HALXEET
HABRSHEERBRNERS  HEREDR
RESIPEHERRTRELBTREETHNE
B e HRRADEHMERBEEZETEL ZATK
B R-TEEENA=1TH AQRaES
ERNEBEERREERZETECKRERRAH
# AR ®60,000,000 (ZFE——F : AR¥
150,704,0007T) BIEEIE - EE8&R - &8
AR EE AT B B o

AR ZFT—=FMA =+ A & ERealtop&k &
(FF5E40(b)) » HAEERHEKE 2K A KB
TOREEE R AK#90,704,0007T °

* XA REHRES

30. BERZARZEKRE
BIEXSRBRZBEMT -

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at fair value &8 FTiERZF A AL E 63 55

The above financial assets are classified as held-for-trading.
The fair values of these financial assets are based on
quoted market prices.

31. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carried interest at market rate which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.50% (2012: 0.01% to 0.50%) per
annum.

NEFHEEEEDBRRRZMFBAE  ZEH
BEEZAAREBENDERTIZME -

31. BITEERES

RITEFREFNF0.01%E0.50% (ZF—
ZF 1 0.01%%E0.50%) ZTIBHNETE -
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32. EZRHEMENKIEA

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Trade payables FETE 5 FIR 5,614 41,335
Receipts in advance (note iii) TEM R (Bt akiii) — 482,217
Accrued expenses and other payables JFE AR 2 N B Ath E A~ FRIE 3,474 18,314
9,088 541,866

(ii)

The Group normally receives credit period from
suppliers ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within
the credit timeframe.

An aged analysis of the trade payables at the end

() AEE—RKEEEEORIESA30KR
B0k - AEEEC RV KRR E B
BR - RFTAENREREESHRE
5 o

(i MEEBZEZENFIRRERAHK

of the reporting period based on invoice date is as DT
follows:

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARBFIT
Within 60 days 60K AN - 40,904
61 - 90 days 61290X - 60
91 - 365 days 91&365K 5,614 5
Over 365 days 365K - 366
5,614 41,335
(i) ~ Receipts in advance represented sales proceeds (i) FERFEAEER-_ZT—Z-F+ZH=
received from buyers in connection with the Group’s T—HBZYEEE  MERKRZEE

pre-sale of properties as at 31 December 2012 and

was eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries.

PR1STRIR » YR E B R RIS
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33. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

33. FREARITER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE - —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Carrying amounts repayable*: FE FREBREE >
On demand or within one year BB —FR 1,164 5,986
Carrying amount of bank borrowings FERAE B AR ST — S IAREE
that are not repayable within one year EEEBEAEIIRERESR
from the end of the reporting period but ERZRITERERAEE
contain a repayment on demand clause (RRBEaBETES)
(shown under current liabilities) 5,854 7,212
7,018 13,198
Less: amounts due within one year B R—F 2 REEf
shown under current liabilities mEBEaE (7,018) (13,198)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ~ RIEABBEE N RS EE - -
& The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * I eB I RERBEMATSERDHAME

set out in the loan agreements.

The secured bank borrowings carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rate. The effective interest rates
of the secured bank borrowings at 31 December 2013
ranged from 1.96% to 3.54% (2012: 2.03% to 7.94%)

per annum.

.
TE °

£7.94%)

At 31 December 2013, the borrowings are secured R-ZE—=F+_"A=+—H

against the Group's leasehold land and buildings with
carrying values of approximately RMB16,471,000 (2012:

RMB17,329,000).

TR o

ZERBBETERE TS B R B o HIFEIT
BN —_ZE—=F+-_A=+—R2EBEFN
KN F1.96%%E3.54% (ZF— - :2.03%

BERTIAKRE
EREEELNASARE16,471,000T (ZE—=
£ ANR#¥17,329,00000) 2HHE L MIEF
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

34. TBAKRES

2013 2012
—E—=£F —_ZT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Convertible bonds issued by the Company: RAB BT 2 ] ES
At beginning of the year REFH] 312,187 311,260
Change in fair value of convertible bonds ARBRESF 2 AR BEES 11,833 4,139
Exchange realignment ME H =8 (4,789) (3.212)
Redemption of a convertible bond IR E A E D (319,231) =
At the end of the year NE4 = 312,187
The following in an analysis of convertible bonds for A& A E R RES ST T -
reporting purposes:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
CBI CB I Total CBI CBII Total
GIE:T: AR AR AR
&%l EHI e B B RG]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®TR AR®BTR AR®TT ARBTT AR®TT
Non-current liabilities EREHEE = = - = 179,782 179,782
Current liabilities TEAE = = = 132,405 = 132,405
- - - 132,405 179,782 312,187

Convertible bonds are designated at fair value through

profit or loss.

AR E S T AR AL AIRS -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 1 December 2010 (“Issue Date 1”), the Company
issued CB | in principal amount of HK$160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB136,000,000) to
the Subscriber. The net proceeds from the issue of
the CB | were used to settle the entire outstanding
amount due to the Bank. The CB | is secured
by a guarantee, the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings and investment property with carrying
values of approximately RMB11,658,000 (2013: nil)
and RMB175,800,000 (2013: nil) respectively and
share charge over Usualink Development Limited
("Usualink”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The CB | entitle the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time on or after three months from the Issue Date
| up to ten business days prior to 30 November
2013 (the “Settlement Date |”) in multiples of
HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,250,000) at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.59 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.50)
(subject to adjustments) per conversion share. If the
CB | has not been converted, they will be redeemed
on the Settlement Date | at par. Interest of 4%
per annum will be paid semi-annually up until the
Settlement Date |.

Pursuant to the CB | subscription agreement, the
conversion price of the CB | shall be adjusted on
each of the first and second anniversaries of the
Issue Date | if the volume weighted average price
of the shares over the preceding calendar month is
less than 85% of the applicable conversion price.
The new conversion price will then be adjusted
to a price equal to 85% of the conversion price
immediately before the adjustment.

On 30 November 2013, the CB | was matured and
the total principal amount of HK$160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB126,564,000) was
paid by the Company representing 100% of the
outstanding principal amount. A fair value decrease
of approximately HK$4,970,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,931,000) is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss at the date
of maturity.

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

34. ARES (@)

(a) E@:T— e £+ - A — B (%17
BHEID XARBTASEBE
160,000,0007T (8 & B 4 A R &
136,000,0007T) < A IR B HIT R EE
A o BT R ERIZ TS RIEFEH
RENENRITZEEREERIE - 7]
B ERFITIAER  BIASEEREEY
Bl A& # AR #11,658,000T (Z&F—=
F . |) &k AR¥175,800,000T (==
—=F : 8\) yHELHREFNEEY
XEERR UYEROBLETFARAEE
B ARBBERAR AR ([BE]) -

AR EHFIRERAE AR ETTH IS

“EAREE_S —:¢+ A=+
B ([t EHI) A1+ @ % 8 8B pE
B g Al MR E H 1R B ri%%zs,ooo,oooﬁ (18
B R4 AREA4,250,0000T) 2 fE e i
BARANRIEER  YRBRESTRE
%15 B ¥0.597T (FBE R ARKO0.50
7C) (A] T HAR) o (W ] AR E A R EE
% EJJH%EASEHHHJ%H;?@EH%@ 554
EzHMESSFERN—XEXF B
ﬂ: °

RIBAIRBEFIREGZE - WRORE

f8 & 56 — 1Iﬂ¢2ﬁl BAZKRXEINE
FHELRNERHRRKE 285% @ AR #

Hxﬁ%l%ﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬁé%ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁi% (EPNE
ﬂl?ﬂiiﬂ*ﬁ o TR B AW AR E
ENEEEFARERIRESS % 2B o

R EFRR _TE—=ZF+
+HIEH ARAIZNBEREEE
#160,000,0007C (1B & BN 4 A R ¥
126,564,0007T) * HHE R E2 AR

N ER D475 %4,970,0007T (48
BN ARY3,931,0000T) REIEAE R
MEBERRTER -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34. AIEARES (&)
(a) (Continued) (@ (#&)
The fair value of the CB | at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_A=+—H a#1k
was approximately HK$164,970,000 (equivalent to BHIZ AR 1EX AEBE164,970,0007T
approximately RMB132,405,000) (2013: nil), which (FHE R4 AR®132,405,0000T) (==&
was determined taking into account a valuation —=F:8) HIKZERERHFAZ
carried out by Vigers using the binomial model. BRXETZHEMEE
The fair value of the CB | at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+_A=+—H " a#1k
was calculated using the market value basis. Major BRICARBEIEMEREEFE - 518
parameters adopted in the calculation of the fair AREMKANEZ2EBREOT -
value were summarised below:
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
+t=A=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
Share price & 1D B 1% N/A HK$0.50
TEA 75 #50.507T
Conversion price B N/A HK$0.59
TEA 78 #0.597T
Expected volatility (note i) TEHRE R (FaEi) N/A 47%
TEH 47%
Expected life (note ii) FEERAE R (B i) N/A 11 months
TEH 111E A
Risk-free rate (note iii) RS = (B FEi) N/A 0.08%
TEA 0.08%
Expected dividend yield (note iv) TEHARR B & (MIETiv) N/A 0%
TEA 0%
Notes: BE
[0) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical (i) TR R IR BB E AR RN ER 2 FE LR IRE

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

volatility of the Company’s share price.

Expected life was the expected remaining life of the option.
The risk-free rate was determined by reference to the yield of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to

the life of the CB I.

The expected dividend vyield was based on the historical
dividend payment record of the Company.

= c

(iy EHERHRGREZERGTERY -

(i) AR K J52E 8] (8 55 AR AR
EBINEERSRRE WA RETE -

(iv) TEHREWMEFREANRBERSCHETE
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 1 March 2011 (“Issue Date 11”), the Company
issued convertible bonds (“CB II”) in the principal
amount of HK$230,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB191,112,000) at zero coupon
rate to Seaton Limited (“Seaton”), a connected
party of the Group, for the settlement of the
consideration payable to Seaton in relation to the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Armando Investments Limited (“Armando”) during
the year ended 31 December 2011. Armando
is @ company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which holds 25% equity interest in Zhuhai
Zhongzhu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu”). Following the acquisition,
the Group holds 75% equity interest in Zhuhai
Zhongzhu.

CB Il holders were entitled to convert CB Il into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time on
or after three months from the Issue Date Il up to
ten business days prior to 28 February 2014 (the
“Settlement Date I1”) in multiples of HK$5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,150,000) at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.8115 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.674) (subject to adjustments)
per conversion share. If CB Il has not been
converted, they will be redeemed on Settlement
Date Il at par.

Pursuant to the CB Il subscription agreement,
90% of the applicable conversion price of the
CB Il shall be adjusted on each of the first and
second anniversaries of the Issue Date Il if the
volume weighted average price of the shares over
the preceding 30 days is less than 85% of the
applicable conversion price.

The Company may at any time after 12 months of
the Issue Date Il and before the Settlement Date Il
with prior notice to the bondholder(s) redeem all,
but not some only, of the CB Il at 110% of the
outstanding principal amount of the CB Il.

34. ARES (@)

by RZ-ZZE——F=F—H(%1THH
) RRABUNEREBBEITASER
#230,000,0007TC (#8 & W & A R ¥
191,112,0007T) Z AT#AAR (& ([ AT R
BRI FTHREBRAR ([KE] X A&
BrBEAT)  NWEERBE_ZT——
F+_-_A=+—HItFE WK EArmando
Investments Limited ([Armando]) 2
E2HEBTRAMENKE ZKRE -
Armando® — RN EB R L E ST MK
VZzra EFEBREHP K 225%K
B RWEE  AEERFRBEKREFKE
HEREZEARAR ([ZREHIK]) 275%
IRHE o

AMEBREFIFE ABERET BB
FA=@AzsBE_ZT—WNE_A -+
NB (T EHN) fr @2 2 8 8/
BE B 1% 1] #2 iR (E A 114% 7& #5,000,0007T
(HERHARYAL,150,0007T) 2 EHE
BAEARRRILEER  VREBRELSR
RN ER0.8115C (HHERHARE
0.6747%) (Al THA%E) WA MR EFHIIK
T BRI BBIRmERRD -

RIFABERESIZBGS  WERORE
{8 X 58 — BB F 2 BI30K 2 B X & hn
FHEIREFRAE 285% © A #
PRIE 2118 A (B 2 90% AN 1T H &
Iz & 18 N 3 — (AR SR -

AN BRI R EELT B A1 218 A 18 RS
BRI ERERFELBNESHEEAM
AR RBEFIFH RN ARNETE 2110%
BRI (MIHEREHD) AHRRESRI -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

On 1 March 2012, the conversion price in force
of the 2011 CB Il had been reset to HK$0.73035
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.5929) per
conversion share as the volume weighted average
of the closing prices of the shares over the
preceding 30 trading days of the first anniversary of
the date of issue of the CB Il was less than 85% of
the conversion price, the original conversion price of
HK$0.8115 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.674)
would be adjusted to be equivalent to 90% of the
then applicable conversion price. The details were
set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 7 March 2012.

On 1 March 2013, the conversion price in force
of the 2011 CB Il has been reset to HK$0.657315
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.5267)
per conversion share as the volume weighted
average of the closing prices of the shares over
the preceding 30 trading days of the second
anniversary of the date of issue of the CB Il was less
than 85% of the conversion price, the conversion
price of HK$0.73035 (equivalent to approximately
RMB0.5929) would be further adjusted to be
equivalent to 90% of the then applicable conversion
price. The details are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 March 2013.

On 5 July 2013, the Company has exercised its
right to early redeem the CB Il in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$230,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB181,677,000) in full. The total
amount paid by the Company is HK$253,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB200,000,000),
representing 110% of the outstanding
principal amount. A loss on early redemption
of HK$9,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB7,333,000) and a fair value increase of
approximately HK$19,930,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB15,764,000) are recognised in

i consolidated statement of profit or loss at the date
- of redemption. Upon full redemption of the CB I,

the CB Il is cancelled.

34. ARES (@)
(b) (#&)

R-ZTE——F=F—H8 BHRBROHRA
MR E A% 1T B H 2 & @B F A1301E R
SHZERENEFHWRTE SRR
B 285% ' [RIAAR B #¥0.811575T (48
BERHARB0674TT) BRAREEE
NERBBREE90% M-S ——&0
BREFIZHRRECETRTEAETRGE
I % 17 75 #60.730357C (ME RO AR
0.59297T) - BAFIBHIIN A A A H
B-E——_FE=RF+tBAZAE -

HR-_ZE—Z=F=A—8 artikmHn
AR ESIZEETE B 2 — @B FA130
ERXS5HZKREMEFHKTELR
AR (B 285% + A f% B & #0.730357C
(HERHARK0.59297T) BiE—%
FAREEHERERBRREZ90% ' =
T——FABRERIZERBEREEE
¥k € A BRI (7D B ¥0.6573157T
(HERHARKO52677L) - AEFHEB
HINALRFTBHA-ETE—=F=AI

BZR&E -

RZE—=F+tAHEB  ARATE
HiERN REZHELRASRBAE
#230,000,0007T (1B & BN 4 A B ¥
181,677,0007T) Z Al R E FHIl - XA
AT 2445 &% ®253,000,000
7T (8 & B 4 A R #200,000,0007T)
HERMABELOARAELE 2110% - F
fE O] /&5 18 8 %59,270,0007T (ABE R 4
A K #7,333,000T) K& A2 1B H0A
75 19,930,000t (FBE & W AR ¥ 4
15,764,0007T) REED 2 B GREaBmEK
AR - RBEER TR ESIEZ - 7]
BIREHNAE T AES o
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 34. WRIRES (&)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (#&)
The fair value of the CB Il at 31 December 2012 R_TE——_F+_A=+—8  a#Rk
was approximately HK$224,000,000 (equivalent to BRI AR EH R BE224,000,0007T
approximately RMB179,782,000) (2013: nil), which (FHE R4 AR®179,782,0000T) (==&
was determined taking into account a valuation —=F:8) HIKZEERHFAZ
carried out by Vigers, using the binomial model. HRXETZHEMEE
The fair value of the CB Il at the end of the REZEARIEFERAE - AJBRKRESI
reporting period and at the date of early redemption ZARENERTEREEFE - HEQR
was calculated using the market value basis. Major BEMFEANEZE2HBENT
parameters adopted in the calculation of the fair
value were summarised below:
5 July 2013 31 December 2012
R-B-=% R-T—_F
tAER +-A=+—H
Share price RN EHE HK$0.50 HK$0.50
7B #0.507T B #0.507T
Conversion price B E HK$0.6573 HK$0.7304
7&%0.6573 7T ##0.73047T
Expected volatility (note i) TR IR (HeED) 36% 41%
Expected life (note ii) TEHRA S (B &) 8 months 14 months
8@ A 14{E A
Risk-free rate (note iii) MR e (PRl 0.21% 0.094%
Expected dividend yield (note iv) MRS X (FTiv) 0% 0%
Notes: B 5T
(i) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical (i) TEAR iR mET E AR RIRMER 2B LR IRE

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

volatility of the Company’s share price.

Expected life was the expected remaining life of the option.
The risk-free rate was determined by reference to the yield of
the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to

the life of the CB II.

The expected dividend yield was based on the historical
dividend payment record of the Company.

B c

(i) TEHERPRGREZRDHTERD -

(iiy  EERRAE T2 E B R E IR A T
ZERINERSRBZWAETERE -

(iv) FEHREBKREXRRBEARDFBERECEETE °
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35. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 35. EMAAE
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T R ARETT
At the beginning of the year REH] 48,815 44,645
Exchange realignment ME H =58 (940) (482)
Imputed interest expense charged FARHEF S H
during the year (note 11) (FrzE11) 669 4,652
Settlement during the year FANER (vii) (48,544) -
At the end of the year NE4 = 48,815
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RE BB WD
Current liabilities mEERE = 48,815
Non-current liabilities FEMEBBIE - -
- 48,815
Notes: BiAE -

(ii)

The amounts represented the deferred payment in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Boom Lotus
Holding Limited, and its subsidiaries, Pine Global Holdings
Limited and Zhongzhu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. in
November 2009.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated
11 August 2009, the consideration of HK$343,200,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB302,016,000) (“Cash
Consideration”) was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
originally were payable by the Group on or before 19
November 2011.

On 4 January 2010, the Group and the vendor of Boom
Lotus Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”), a subsidiary acquired
by the Group in 2009, entered into a supplementary
agreement. Pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to provide
a cash discount of approximately HK$7,158,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB6,299,000) (“Cash Discount”) to
the Group for the early settlement of HK$136,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB119,680,000) of the Cash
Consideration (“Early Settlement |”).

The Early Settlement | was settled by way of the followings:

(a) On 4 January 2010, as requested by the Vendor,
the Group, the Vendor and the purchaser of Hill
Light (the “Buyer”) entered into an agreement, in
which the Buyer agree to settle the Consideration
Receivables of HK$126,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB110,880,000) directly to the
Vendor, the settlement has been completed on 14
January 2010.

(b) On 4 January 2010, the Group has agreed to
settle HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB8,800,000) of the Cash Consideration to the
Vendor.

(ii)

ZEEAAM_TTNF+— ARBERZRS
RARREMBATMTREARAFRKEF
ﬁ?ﬂﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁ%EﬁEQETZ%%BE?é‘ﬁ%ZKZEE
2K o

*EHFEIHHﬁfY ENFNAT+—BZEEW
% 0 /8 #343,200,0000C (BB E R O AR
302,016,0007T) 2 K {B (FIE@HSJ) B I
R ZFERERAERAAEER T —F+—
B+hBszaisft e

A-—T—TE—FOE - AEFESEHRERE
Al (AEER-_ZTZNAEREZHWEAR)
EX(BER)ZE—MNEXTHE - BHER
%ﬂ — S5 44 %7,158,0007T (M E R4 A
%6,299,0007T) 2z R e M (/LML)
FARAEENEAAEEREEERSRESE
136,000,000t (48 & M 49 A K #119,680,000
JC) 2 ([IREEEI]) -

RN
pu

D N 5
Q&ED]HD]]

REEZILLTIH S AEE

(a) A—E—ZFE—ANE BESHZE
X AEE - BAILMEXZER(E
R BE—OHz BLHERREEE

MEXEERBNRES ﬁ%126,ooo,00075

MH?E?WW\EMHO 880,0007T) * #ZX
§Z§HEB’\ —ZTF—A+MmAR

R-ZE—FF—FMA  AEBREIR
21838 % 110,000,0007T (F8E AL A
R#8,800,0007T) ZHEREFER -
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35. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Besides of the arrangement of Early Settlement I, the
Group and the Vendor entered into several supplementary
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2010,
pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to provide a further
total cash discount of approximately HK$5,407,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,704,000) to the Group
for the early settlement of HK$108,136,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB94,079,000) of the remaining Cash
Consideration (“Early Settlement II").

On 10 March 2011, the Group and the Vendor entered into
a supplementary agreement that Vendor agreed to provide
a cash discount of approximately HK$1,183,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB982,000) to the Group for early
settlement of HK$23,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB19,651,000) of the remaining Cash Consideration (“Early
Settlement I11").

On 18 November 2011, the Group and the Vendor entered
into a supplementary agreement to extend the repayment
period for 15 months from 20 November 2011 to 20
February 2013 for the remaining Cash Consideration of
approximately HK$61,666,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB51,240,000) on 19 November 2011 with nominal
interest of 2.5% per annum.

Upon the extension of the repayment period of the
consideration payable, the fair value of the consideration
reduced to approximately HK$54,439,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB45,234,000), leading to a gain on
extinguishment of consideration payable of approximately
HK$7,227,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,006,000)
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The effective interest rate of the consideration payable is
6.6% (2012: 12.6%) per annum.

On 20 February 2013, a third supplementary agreement had
been entered into between the Group and the Vendor for
a further extension of the payment date of the remaining
amount for a period of nine months from 21 February 2013
to 20 November 2013. No interest is to be charged during
the extension period. On 8 October 2013, the Group has fully
settled the remaining amount.

35.
B RE

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BNRE @)

(%&)

BRIRREBIZZHIN BE-_FT—ZTF+=
A=Z+—BLFE  AEEES %ETI%(W@
e Bt BERRAEMENEER TR
& X {8 % %6108,136,0007T (#H zéﬁ R AR
94,079,0007T) ([fEREEI]) - ME—F A K
£ ER AR S I 48 #5,407,0000T (FEE
RHARE4,704,0007T) °

\_FE——F=HAtH"
DR E B ERR
1,183,0007C (A8 & M 4 A
fﬁﬁﬂu%$%lw¢%m€l %E
& K (B85 123,650,000 (& K
19,651,0007T) ZHH (MEREEN])

R-TZ——F+—A+N\B AEEEERFE
— DT LB TERERE (R=2F——
F+—A+NBHEEEE61,666,0007T (FHER
#) AR #51,240,0007T) * BEFFEAE2.5%)
ZEFPA T ——F+— A=+ HERISE
AE=_FE—=%-"A=+8-

AREMREZERYPLER  REZAREREL
75 #654,439,0007T (FHE R K ARME45,234,000
) ARREBEE—_ZEZ——F+-_A=+—H1it
FEBBIMEEMNRE ZWZL)B%7,227,000
7t (FHER# AR ¥6,006,0007T) ©

ENREZERENRE66% (ZT— —4F:
12.6%) °

MRECZE—=F"R—+H AEEETRFIIS
=i AR T2RZEFRE—F AR
= H 4 EILEMIH;ZE*?—E
F+—H-1TH  REREBABEASNHE - 1
“Z-=F+HANE FEEEEFBEEHT
B e
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36. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 36. EERRAK
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each ERBEI10TZEBER
Equivalent to
Number of HER
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
REEER BT AR¥T
Authorised: AT
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 and N_E——F—Hf—H-
31 December 2013 T+ A=+—H
RZZ—=F+ZA=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000 281,070
Issued and fully paid: BORBHERA
At 1 January 2012 R=FE——%—A—H 851,980,000 85,198 81,232
Conversion of convertible redeemable BRI ERAELELR
preference shares (note) (BzE) 78,947,368 7,894 6,346
Conversion of convertible redeemable BT BATERELAR
preference A shares (note) (B3E) 10,526,315 1,053 846
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 RZBE—ZFK
“E-=H+"A=+—H 941,453,683 94,145 88,424
Note: BiaE
During the year ended 31 December 2012, approximately 78,947,000 HE_Z——F+-A=1T—BLLFE  REBRKRE
(2013: nil) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued upon the BARA0.387T (FHE R4 A RB0.30557T) BHiRn]
conversion of the convertible redeemable preference shares at a 1 7] R 01 {8 ST A 18 3 17 4078,947,0008% (ZF — =4 :
conversion price of HK$0.38 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.3055) ) BRRBEE0. 10 2 EBAR o b - RIERRESTR
per share. In addition, approximately 10,526,000 ordinary shares of 75 150.387T (FHE R4 ARK0.30557) BT eian]
HK$0.10 each were issued upon the conversion of the convertible i [0 18 SCARR 18 2217 4910,526,000A% & I E ¥50.107T 2
redeemable preference A shares of HK$0.38 (equivalent to TR -  ZEROEEMEFTRORMEIEZEER
approximately RMBO0.3055) per share. These shares rank pari passu EHEm o BRAFIBENIEIT7

with other shares in issue in all respects. Details of which are set out
in note 37.
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37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES

37. EBRTEEELKR

BITREH R 2 EBRAELEEERMT

Convertible redeemable preference shares, issued and fully

paid:
Number of shares Amount
BRE( x|
2013 2012 2013 2012
= T~ —B-=F T
Notes ‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bzt TR T AR®EFTRH ARETIT
At beginning of the year REA] 375,000 460,000 152,006 184,653
Conversion of convertible CERAI il )
redeemable preference shares Bk (d) - (75,000) - (28,806)
Conversion of convertible B4 0] 85 4 1] BB [O]
redeemable preference A shares BEAM (d) = (10,000) = (3,841)
At end of the year NG 375000 375000 152,006 152,006
Represented by: HA 4
Convertible redeemable 0] 2 ] BE [Ol{8 St Ik
preference shares 275,000 275,000 113,600 113,600
Convertible redeemable 0] ] BE Ol 8 ST APY
preference A shares 100,000 100,000 38,406 38,406
375,000 375,000 152,006 152,006

Notes:

As a result of completion of the issue of the CB I, the conversion price
of the convertible redeemable preference shares and the convertible
redeemable preference A shares of the Company will be adjusted
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.38 with effect from 1 December 2010.

(a) On 29 June 2006, the Company issued 250,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of par value of
HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40 each for cash. In
April 2007, the Company exercised the option to require the
subscriber to further subscribe for an additional 100,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares at HK$0.40 each
pursuant to the relevant agreement. On 22 June 2007, the
Company issued these 100,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares of par value of HK$0.10 at a subscription
price of HK$0.40 each for cash.

(b) On 29 December 2006, the Company issued 110,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A shares of par value of
HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40 each in respect
of the acquisition of a subsidiary.

All the above convertible redeemable preference shares
can be converted into ordinary shares at HK$0.38 (2012:
HK$0.38) per share. The major terms of the above-mentioned
preference shares are set out below:

b ¢

PR AT B 21 BT SE R 1R+ 7R @) B S 4 A 148 5 AR
K AT 82 46 A] B8 O (8 e ANR 2 HRA AR (B 1 fr 78 H50.407T SR B
=038 B E—TE— A—HBAER -

(a) RZZBEZERFANAZTNAHE  ARBINKEIR S
F IR R E & %0.407T317250,000,000
f% A EE S #0.10 T 2 AT $2 34 A 05 B & L A% -
R-ZZLFMA - KRR REEBIHZITE
BF - BRRBEAASRBE0LOTTEINRE
100,000,000 Al AT EE B LR - RZEE
+tFERNAZT =8 ARRANKEBREHRZE
[i% 7 #0.407T W 3R B8 (B #5775%100,000,000/% &
R EE S %0.10 T 2 AT E A A] fE (048 S0 A% -

(b) R-ZZBEERE+-_A=-+hHAB X2FgtlkE
— R B AR MIZREESRAEK0.40037T
110,000,000/% & f% F {E & #0. 1070 2 Al 853 ]
fEEBSTAR -

it By A ] S 4R ] B B 8 S IR S AT iR RS I
038 (ZE——%F : B¥038m) BrALE
f% - B LB RN EZIERTISMT ¢
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37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE 37. AEBRTEEELER (&)
PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) PisE : (8)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (&)
i) For the convertible redeemable preference shares (i) BRZZETZAFAAZTNAARZZE

issued on 29 June 2006 and 22 June 2007, the Lt EANAZ T HBET 2O ERN]E L
preference share holders (the “Preference Share BEBKRMES  BERKRE ([BERR
Holders”) has the right, exercisable at any time R]) BEBAZETH (XEARRIRMIKE
from the date of issue to 15 June 2009 and 7 June BERS) 2T NEFSA+TREBARS
2010 respectively (the dates being the 10 business T —TFNALHAM (A ERBEITIERE
days before the third anniversary of the respective Al EE A ] fE BB L AR 5E = G Al T E & %
dates of initial issue of the convertible redeemable BB AR (TEHaER ) (F fa] RF 85 40 18 5
preference shares) (“Conversion Period”), to convert [RAEFME LR - KRR BERER
the preference shares into fully paid ordinary shares. HEREEERERMEXETABER
The Company has the right, exercisable following —FHE - ERERFAENBYELRK
the end of the conversion period and up to the sk ERREABBMTA K HE L
third anniversary of the date of the initial issue of REEH LR
the preference shares, to redeem all or part of the
preference shares or to request the subscriber to
convert all or part of preference shares into fully paid
ordinary shares.
During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company HE_ZTZNFAA=THLEFE &
and the Preference Share Holders entered into a A A B A] E A n] BB BB S IR AR SR E ] —
supplemental agreement and agreed to extend the DTS LR E S SRR SR
Conversion Period for a further 12 months from HAERAER T =@ EERARE
the expiry date of the Conversion Period such that BRERETHEI —_ZE-—ZTEA+H
the Preference Share Holders shall have the right Ak=—FT——F - AtRA (BERET
to convert the convertible redeemable preference 250,000,0000% X.100,000,000% rJ #&
shares held by it at any time from the date of AEEEERENFR 2 TEZXEH

issue to 15 June 2010 and 7 June 2011 (the dates H9) o
being 10 business days before fourth anniversary

of the date of initial issue of 250,000,000 and the

100,000,000 convertible redeemable preference

shares respectively).

On 23 October 2009, the Company and the RZZFZENF+A=Z+=H  ~AAaEH
Preference Share Holders entered into a second BERBRIIIMABHRZIE _HFER
supplemental agreement to the Subscription W BELRERERRELRER
Agreement to allow the Preference Shares Conversion HEBBAETESER T @A - It
Period to be extended automatically for a period of Gh BERRZAE T EE] LB A T8
12 months with effect from each expiry date of the 5E o

Preference Shares Conversion Period. In addition,
the preference shares shall be transferable upon the
entering of this supplementary agreement.

(ii) For the convertible redeemable preference A shares (if) RR BT AF+ZAZTNLBAETZ
issued on 29 December 2006, the preference A A A BE BB SEARR IR (DM ¢ B AR
shareholder (the “Preference A Share Holder”) has B ([BRARKRR]) BEREITRZE
the right, exercisable at any time from the date of —ETNE+Z A+ A M (BIERE
issue to 19 December 2008 (the date being the 10 1TAE A A] & A 0] BB [0 (B SR AR 58 — F AT+
business days before the second anniversary of the A=A BH) ([BrxARERE]) £
date of initial issue of the convertible redeemable FREEBELRAE AT LT ER - AAQ
preference shares) (“Preference A Shares Conversion AEENEBHRERNEREO A RS

3 Period”), to convert the preference shares into fully BEARR - INAEREBRIEREEEL

LTRES paid ordinary shares. The Company has the right, I& A% 15 &R E 1T B HA S M R A B R
exercisable during the preference A shares conversion LSRR ABBATE I DB STARK S
period, to redeem all or part of the preference shares. REBREBRRN

The Company also has the right, exercisable following
/ the end of the preference A shares conversion period
— and up to the second anniversary of the date of
the initial issue of the preference shares, to request
the subscriber to convert all or part of preference A
shares into fully paid ordinary shares.
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37. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company
and the Preference A Share Holder have agreed to
extend the Preference A Shares Conversion Period for
the convertible redeemable preference shares to 19
December 2009.

During the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 December
2009, the Company and the Preference A Share
Holder entered into a supplemental agreement in
which:

(1) the preference shares conversion period
shall be extended automatically for a
period of twelve months with effect from
each expiry date of the preference shares
conversion period unless (i) the Preference
A Share Holder serves a written notice on
the Company notifying its intention of not
extending the preference shares conversion
period for a further twelve months not later
than seven days prior to the expiry date of
the preference shares conversion period, and
(i) the Company agrees not to extend the
preference shares Conversion period for a
further twelve months upon receiving such
notice; and

(0 the preference shares shall be transferable.

The convertible redeemable preference shares and
convertible redeemable preference A shares do not
carry the right to vote. Each share is entitled to
be paid a fixed cumulative preferential dividend in
priority to any payment to the holders of any other
class of shares at the rate of 3.5% per annum on
the amount paid up or credited as paid up. No
payment of dividends on the convertible redeemable
preference shares and convertible redeemable
preference A shares unless at the relevant dividend
payment due date, the Company has sufficient
distributable reserves to cover the payment of such
dividends.

No convertible preference shares were redeemed during the
two years ended 31 December 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, approximately
78,947,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued
upon the conversion of the convertible redeemable preference
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.38 (equivalent
to approximately RMB0.3055) per share. In addition,
approximately 10,526,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each were issued upon the conversion of the convertible
redeemable preference A shares of HK$0.38 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.3055) per share.

37. AEBRTEEELER (&)

BsE : (&)
() (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(%&)

HE_ZZANFSA=THIEFE &
A R) e AT AR R] B OB S ARRIRER B[R &
7% AT S5 4R A] i O B ST ARCEE R EE R —
ZENEFTZATNE -

H_EZNFELA—HBE2_FTTNFT+
“A=+—HEH  AAFEELARK
REZE—DETHES

(1 AHESE R ER I A Em s B A
BEE+_EA BELKREHR
He fE 2 B AR B IE()E
AR RN E X RBIRE 2 fE
m B AT NBRERA AR R
SEBEM  BAEAEEILERE
FEREMB+ @R R>)EARA
AR B ZBAIEK - RETERE
SRS+ @A &

Iy  BEEMRATAKREE -

] 88 4 ] i [0 4 5 AR K% T 88 4 A] R O 1B
SEARRIL NP A R A o B A
WERE E Rt BERE - ZBRE 2K
BAMEMEMERROOTEA @ A
NEFEBRISRIZEHESEATUEE
FEMESEHE - BRIFARRERHA
B3 - 7 A ArE8 4% A] i 3 48 5T B A A
B ARABRATDIRFEHBABSE
FARLE. °

REBEZE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HBIL®
EEE 154 5 B (T ] o] 2318 S0 % o

B2 Z——+-_A=+—HI*F
B REZRRESREK0.38T (HER
49 A R ¥0.30557T) 82 #2 ] &2 4 ] fE o]
B IR 18 317 4978,947,0000% & i% 78 #&
0.107c 2 LA - o NIEBMBRET
1% 78 #0.387C (A& RN 4 A R #0.3055
JC) B n] 8E A A] fE BB AR R BT H
10,526,0000% FAZ B ¥0.107T 2 L A% ©
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38. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereof during the current and
prior reporting periods:

—=#+-A=+—ALEE

38 RIEBLIA

RAER R AFEME  BEREZANTERELRIE
(BE) BEMEZHHNT

Impairment Impairment
loss loss  Impairment  Change in
recognised ~ Changein  recognised loss fairvalueof  Changein
Accelerated inrespect fairvalueof  inrespect recognised  properties fairvalue of Undistributed
depreciation ~ ofother investment  of trade ~in respect of under  properties profit of Provision
allowance  receivables  properties receivables inventories development held forsale  asubsidiary  Taxlosses for LAT Total
Bt REnE g7 wENE  GENE
MEAE ERGEZ 0 ME BYSEz 0 FEz ME MME WEM TihEE

B WEER 229 HERR REFE 248 289 AOREN  REBE  RAR L

RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO0  RMBO0  RMBO0  RwBO0  RwBO0  RMBO0  RMIBO00  RMIBOO0  RMIB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETT ARBTR

At 1 January 2012 R-F-—%-f-H 9 534 (18550) 640 904 (20429) (1,082) = 7442 - (30441)

Exchange realignment ERER = = = (15) = = - - (53) = 69)

Transfer from properties under HEENEER

development to properties ERENE

held for sale - - - - - 20,428 (20,428) - - - -
(Charged) credited to consolidated ~ (41%) SHAR

statement of profit or loss FRER% 210 = (5,425) = (116) = 9,658 (419) (493) 18717 18417
At31 December 2012 RZF-2%

+-A=1-H 309 534 (23975) 625 788 = (11,852) (4,194) 6,8% 18771 (12,09

Exchange realignment EXEE = = = (16) - - - - (151) - (167)
(Charged) credfted to consoldated (k) GEAR

tatement of profitor loss GABER 9 - (1400) - (789) - 4919 (12403 2 8947 (604)

Eiminated on disposal of subsidiaries (&M BA AR 54 (65) (513) - (137) - - 6933 16597 130 Q74 (6141
At31 December 2013 H-g-z%

+=A=1-H 343 A (25,375) an - - - - 5,535 - (19,004)

At 31 December 2013, deferred taxation of approximately MN-ZE—=4F —i— H +—H - AEEBTEE

RMB12,403,000 (2012: RMB4,194,000) has been HqEEEFl.KﬁJ% Sk 2 B BAVEH R IER

provided for the portion of profits that are expected
to be distributed by the PRC subsidiaries and deferred
taxation has been provided for the remaining profits are
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. The
deferred tax liability represents withholding tax arising
on undistributed profits to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary in the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB40,517,000 (2012: RMB41,063,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB33,548,000 (2012: RMB39,256,000) of such losses.

+~"No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

the remaining RMB6,969,000 (2012: RMB1,807,000)
due /to the unpredictability of future profit streams. At
31 December 2012, RMB6,306,000 (2013: nil) included
in_the above unused tax losses will be expired after five
years from the year of arising. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

E%ﬁ%AE%umnmwm_z—_i
AE%Aqum'ﬁEﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%m%

Dk FGF)EELHBEERIBEE - BEM
EEE%*ﬁ$IW?“TZ%%ﬂ@%ﬁ%
KB 5| Bz T -

RZE—=F+-_A=+—8" $%IE*@
MR mEiE &y AR#40,517,000T (ZE—=
F: AR¥41,063,0007T) @ A BRI AR KF
e AEEEREFR BHLAREE33,548,000
T (ZZT——%F: AR¥39,256,0007T) A /&
BRAELEHEELE - AR RRFBERREHT
ATFR AN - I & T s A R #6,969,0007T (=
T——F : AR¥1,807,0007T) FERIELFE
BE - RZE——F+-_A=+—08  AR¥
6,306,000/ (ZE—=F: &) - BFL Lt
AHRAREEEBERELFEHRSFEEIE - H
I8 K ] IR Hi 4 o
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
on 20 January 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was replaced by a new
share option scheme adopted by the shareholders on 30
November 2009 (“2009 Share Option Scheme”).

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the board of directors considers, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date and as
at the approval date of refreshment from time to time,
excluding for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of
options. The subscription price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares,
(i) the average of the closing price of the shares quoted on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the grant date and (iii) the
closing price of the shares on the grant date.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share option scheme was
30,000,000 (2012: 40,000,000), representing 3.19%
(2012: 4.25%) of the ordinary shares in issue at that date.

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

39. URODARERNZINARS

ZiN/N N-_BEE=F—A-_+HEHK—EE
Hxﬁé.ﬁiu(rzooﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁiun 20034 8
KiETEEHR —_ETZNF+—A=Z+tHERRE
BIBRN 2 FE T 8 ([20094F §& IR #E 5T
211) £ o

ARAAREBRETAERSEE (BRE
EEsERNBARERINMEHAEEIELE
B2 AEEEMERNES FATES E
g8 ER - B “ﬁﬁ'?éﬁ 7¥<§$Fﬁ H e
BREBEP - EBRBH %i‘&%ﬁt
Bl A R RIS ER) AR ﬁ%$ alf ey - M
RZARBARRREBE S RABE LR
NEEH 2 HE B BB HTRA10% (T2
ETLLE B BT EERB R M B ITRARD) - REBE
HHRARREZTGET  HE TS ERTIE
Bz8m%E  ()A2RBRONEE  (HBEER
B A BAT AR 5 B R AT EARFT
AL B G E - R (i) BB AR IR 1 B YL
miE e

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8 BREBEKE
EREERTEZEREMSROHEE A
30,000,0000% (== _E : 40,000,0008%) -
HERNEE3.19% (ZF——F : 4.25%) 25
%5(‘? TEH mﬂﬁ ©
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 39. URHBAERNEINARE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by FAEE EEREBEAREZARAER

directors, employees and business associates during the 2 BEWT
year are:
Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Granted Transfer Lapsed Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at Exercise
Category of at 1 January during during during 31 December during 31 December price per
participant Date of grant 212 the year the year the year 2012 the year 2013 Exercise period share
R-%-ZF gt St 3 R-%-=F
-A-R tZA=1-H tzA=t-8
SaER) RiiAH HAGE  REARE  REAER RERRN HAGE  REAXN HATE TEH SRITEE
(note 2) HKs
(Ht2) AR
Directors 21 August 2009 14,052,000 - (3,500,000  (10,552,000) - - - 21 August 2009 to 1.18
g% =3 20 August 2013
NA=t-R ZERNENAZT-RE
ZE-ZE\AZ1H
18 January 2012 - 21,500,000 (4,000,000) - 17,500,000 - 17,500,000 18 January 2012 to 0.52
S 17 January 2015
—-At/R Z2-E-AT\BE
“2-nE-AttH
Employees 21 August 2009 3,200,000 - 3,500,000 (6,700,000) = = - 21 August 2009 to 1.18
g ZEENE 20 August 2013
MZt+-R “ERNENACT-BE
“2-=%/\i=tH
18 January 2012 = 8,500,000 4,000,000 - 12,500,000 - 12,500,000 18 January 2012 to 0.52
- 17 January 2015
—-A+/\A Z2-ZE-ATN\BE
Z2-TE-AttH
Business associates 19 February 2010 10,000,000 = = - 10,000,000 (10,000,000 - 19 February 2010 to 0.88
SRk ZT-ZF 18 February 2013
ZAThA Z3-TECATNRE
“2-Z%-At/H
27,252,000 30,000,000 - (17,052,000 40,000,000  (10,000,000) 30,000,000
Weighted average 1.07 052 118 1.18 061 088 0.52
exercise price (HK$)
R
- (B%T)
Np.te T2 All the above share options are exercisable on the grant date. MizE1 : LA LFrABERIRES R ARIFH B HEATT(E -
N.o‘te 2. Mr. Xiong Jianrui has resigned as executive director of the B2 BRI E AR —E——FE~H -+ BEET
Company on 29 June 2012, however, he remained as an RATIEITE BBLTE + 18 AR T 50 A4 Y5 48 48 A K

_employee of the Company. NEIES °
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on 18 January
2012 and 19 February 2010 were calculated using the
Trinomial model and Binomial model respectively. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

e B RRME

—=Fft+_A=t—BLLFE

39. URODARERNINRS (@)

R_EB——F—A+N\BERZZT—ZFF_A+
hHﬁﬁWHﬂEﬁHﬂ%Z’Aﬁﬁﬁ /?'JLA:IE\)SZ_

IARAFE - RANBEWAT :

18 January 19 February

2012 2010

—T——F —TFF

—A+N\H —A+AhB

Weighted average share price INREFEHRE HK$0.52 HK$0.85
BHL0.527T 7B#0.857T

Weighted average exercise price MNEFEE1TEE HK$0.52 HK$0.88
B#0.527T B 10.887T

Expected volatility TEHAR 18 64.05% 109%
Expected life TEHR A WA 3 years 2 years
3% 2%

Risk-free rate fo [ e Lt K 0.475% 1.028%
Expected dividend yield IR SRS 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over one year
and reference to the companies in the similar industry.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effect of
non transfer ability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$4,637,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,742,000) (2013: nil) for the year ended 31 December
2012 in relation to share options granted by the Company.

BHRBRRMBEE —FARBIREZE LK
BRSEHMOUREZ ARENMERE - £
BEAPERERANABRRENEEE 2 KIf
& THEERE  TENARIRTALNEER -

AEBERABEZ-_ZT——F+_-_HA=+—81t
FEEBARBRLEZEBREZRRIOAES
#4,637,0007T (FBE R4 A R¥3,742,0007T)
(ZB—=F &) o
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Boom Lotus Holdings Limited (together with
its subsidiaries collectively referred to the “Boom Lotus
Group”) on 28 June 2013 (details are set out in note a)
and the entire equity interest in Realtop Group on 30 April
2013 (details are set out in note b) (the Group excluding
the Boom Lotus Group and Realtop Group hereinafter
referred to as the “Retained Group”).

(a)

On 28 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest
in Boom Lotus Group at a consideration of
RMB560,000,000.

The turnovers of the Boom Lotus Group for the
period ended 28 June 2013 and year ended
31 December 2012 were RMB542,138,000 and
RMB904,409,000 respectively. The net profit of the
Boom Lotus Group attributable to the Group for
the period ended 28 June 2013 and year ended
31 December 2012 were RMB104,706,000 and
RMB 154,956,000 respectively.

40. HEKMBLHE

FRNAEBR-_ZT—=F~A-t+/\BEE
ERIERERAT CEREWB ARSI [EE
S8 225k (FRERHF) RRZE
— =40 f =+ Bt ERealtopE B 2 2 A% 1
(FEIBEN ML) (T B IEER S B KRealtopsk
B ASBATEM REBEE]) -

(@ RZE—Z=F-AZ+N\B  x&EEF]
Y EWE - BHREARES560,000,000
TTHEERERER 2 2K -

EREBRHE_ZT—=F~A=-1+AN
BIFHRAABE_T——F+=-_A=
+T—HALFEZEEBINABARK
542,138,000t & A K ®904,409,000
T ASERGEREEREEEZE T —=
FRANA-FTNBILHEBEEE T —
—EF+ A=+ HBHUHEFEZFANHE
o R A AR #104,706,0007T & A R #
154,956,0007T °
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. HEMWBELE (&)

(a) (Continued) (@ (#&)
Upon the completion, the Company ceased to hold REKE  AEEITBREERSET
any interest in the Boom Lotus Group. The net s - EREENEERH I FEE
assets of Boom Lotus Group at the date of disposal R

were as follows:

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control REEFEZEEREGED T :
was lost
As at
28 June 2013
R=B—=%
ANA=TNH
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NERE 452
Property held for sale FEYE 431,949
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 4,194
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E M EYGRIA 1,119
Cash and bank balances Re RRTTETT 394,586
Refundable deposit paid for a possible acquisition AR SRIE 2 BN FIRIER S 150,000
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E MR FRIE (264,591)
Amounts due to the Retained Group FERRE & BFRIE (65,899)
Income tax liabilities FriSi A& (193,169)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 458,641
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB AR ZWE
Cash consideration ReRE 560,000
Transaction costs R KA (1,195)
Net assets of disposed of HEFEE (458,641)
Goodwill kS (184,231)
Non-controlling interests FEFE I M e 89,694
Shareholder’s loan assigned HERFREN (70,857)
Refundable deposit paid for a possible acquisition assigned 1EFE A e BB EIB Y BN AR BIRS 150,000
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of the net HiEmEf O EE B B AR
assets of subsidiaries reclassified from equity to FEEAFTIER Z5E
profit or loss 8,085
Gain on disposal of Boom Lotus Group HEBERER 2 W 92,855
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZRERAFE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents RS MRS SEBMRERZHKE 560,000
Less: cash and bank balances disposed of B HERE RIRTET (394,586)
Less: direct expenses incurred W BEEEACHX (1,195)

164,219
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) On 30 April 2013, the Group discontinued
its technology operation segment upon the
disposal of its 100% interest in Realtop Group
at a consideration of HK$230,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB183,000). Upon completion, the
Company ceased to hold any interest in Realtop

40. HEKMBRQE (@)

by RZZE—=FNWA=+H  AEEBI
& & #230, oom(*a”“ AR
183,0007T) H & H RealtopE B 2 &
s BUREASEZRELE D
HB o E”@Eﬁ?é KR BB BRealtop
& B T {a]#£ 25 ° RealtopEE R & H &

Group. The net liabilities of Realtop Group at the ZEFBREET -
date of disposal were as follows:
Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control KREBFIEZEEREBED M :
was lost
As at
30 April 2013
R=-B—=%
B=1+H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E 88
Held-to-maturity investment (net of impairment) HEZEIEARKRE (HMKRREE) -
Deferred tax assets RIEBIAEE 1,947
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables (net of impairment) B 5 R E MR GRIE (HEREE) 568
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHETF 308
Current liabilities nREAE
Trade and other payables E%&Efﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬁ (1,680)
Amounts due to the Retained Group FERH R BB B RIB (75,038)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFEE (73,807)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE
Cash consideration HEeRE 183
Net liabilities of disposed of HERaE 73,807
Shareholder’s loan assigned EERRER (74,881)
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of the net AEREN Y EE R EA
assets of subsidiaries reclassified from equity to FEEZRFTIERZ5
profit or loss 25,133
Gain on disposal of Realtop Group I & Realtop & B 2 Wias 24,242
The gain on disposal of Realtop Group is included i Realtop R B 2 W st AR SR IR & T 2
in the profit for the year from discontinued operation FRmAP (RHTEE13) -
(see note 13).
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEH SR L FEE
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents R MRSEEYMREZ RE 183
Less:.cash and bank balances disposed of B HERE RIRTET (308)

(125)
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41. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB7,119,000 (2012: RMB7,723,000). The
investment properties generated rental yields of 3.96%
(2012: 4.39%) on an ongoing basis. The investment
properties held have committed tenants for the next one
(2012: one) year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following minimum lease
receivable:

41. EiE
134 FH 4RI

A EEERH AN

REARAYERS WAL B ARET,119,0007T
(ZZE——F: AR¥7,723,0007T) - LAH4E
KERMNREYEFREENHGUEESR
3.96% (ZE— -5 :439%) - HHEREME
MEFABREARAR—F (ZT——F: —F)#
EHEE -

REER - AEBERERKBOZFEMNT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within one year —F R 1,298 1,083

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its equipment under operating
leases arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a term
ranging from one to five (2012: one to four) years and
rentals are fixed. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals and terms of renewal were established in the
leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

AREBFERATANA

AEBUKEHOEEEE TRE - BAD
HEMNF—F20F (ZT——F: —F=
meE) MASCEE - RAESHETLHAH
T BT 2 ETRER G o

WEER - AEBEN 2 FTREGEBET
0K ARG T B ARSI

2013 2012

—E—=fF —T——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Within one year —F R 9 54
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEERFNA

(BREREMF) 14 23

23 Yk
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42,

At the
Group

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to

the Group and certain convertible bond as follows:

42. 2EHEE

REER  AEBEETEESEMTRT - A
ESRTEERETARKRESAT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Leasehold land and buildings e+ RETF 16,471 28,987
Investment properties wEYE - 175,800
16,471 204,787
43. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. REHPREH
Acquisition W iE

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, the Company entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Mr. Huang Shibao,
an independent third party not connected with the Group
for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen
Longshenghang Supply Chain Limited, which holds 90%

equity

interest in Maoming Huada Real Estate Company

Limited. The transaction is in progress and the acquisition
cost is approximately RMB300,000,000. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Group’s announcement dated
25 February 2014.

44.
(a)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 12 December 2009, the Company received a
writ of summons from Global Tide Limited (”Global
Tide"). Global Tide brought civil action in the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region against the Company for compensation
and damages of approximately HK$8,834,000 (the
“Claim”) in relation to the disposal of its former
wholly owned subsidiary, Magic Gain Investments
Limited. Details of the Claim are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2009.

On 31 January 2013, Global Tide filed an amended
statement of claim in the High Court. Pursuant
to which the claim is revised and reduced to
HK$7,967,000. The Company decided to defend

“against the Claim and obtained legal advice in

|

respect of the merits of the Claim. The directors
of the Company expect that there will not be any
material adverse financial effect on the earnings,

net assets and liabilities of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

RZTE—=F+-_A=+—HU%E KA FHE
BOREE (BAEBYERBE B IFE=F)
AN —IEREEE DS 0 ARBERIITERTT
HEFR AR 22 ERE - MR THEERITH
EEERARFAXEMEASHERESR
NAZI0%EHE c ZRPIEEHEST - WK AR
#95 AR #300,000,0007T ° Y& 2 IG5 SR A
EERHA- T NNF_A-_+RHBZAE -

44, FAREE

(@ RZEZAF+-_A+=—B > A2alk
FTHRARKBRAB ([MBAR]) B9FRAAR °
BMAREEFNTHRESF AR A A
A A B H #)75 %8,834,000 2 RER
B (RE] BEREEARAQFRNEE
B B A R A A]Magic Gain Investments
Limited ° BEARE ZFBEHR A QA A
HAE—ZEZNF+_A+NBZRE-

RNR-ZZE—=F—HA=+—8" BAKAS
EARRIRELZERTFRAMR - Bt - B
RESBRER] RFAKEE7,967,000
TCo ARRREABMFRREELFE
MEHERER - ARRESBHBET MK
AT Y AR R K& EH B A A H S
FEERBBEERTNEAAENEE
2=
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)
(Continued)

On 2 October 2013, the Company and Global
Tide reached a settlement agreement by way of
a consent order filed with the High Court, on a
without-admission-of-liability basis. Pursuant to
the settlement of a lump sum of HK$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,746,000) by the
Company on 3 October 2013, Global Tide released
and discharged the Company from any and all
claims, liabilities or obligations in relation to the
claim. Details are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 October 2013.

The Group provided guarantees amounted to
approximately RMB428,962,000 (2013: nil) for the
repayment of the mortgage bank loans granted
to purchasers of the Group's properties. Such
guarantees was released by banks upon the delivery
of the properties to the purchasers or completion of
the relevant mortgage properties registration.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair values of the financial guarantee contracts of
the Group were insignificant at initial recognition
and at the end of the reporting period on the
basis of short maturity periods and possibility
of low default rate. Accordingly, no value had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2012.

44,

(a)

HREE (&)

(%)

R-_ZTE—=F+A—-H A2FIEHEK
REAAEETAEE  LRAESHA
ERXMERETIRIEGS AR - &K
ARARZE—=F+A=H—REZH
% ®E 5 16,000,0007T (FHE R L AR
4,746,0007T) & * 16K R & EE KR m A
ARAMEEZRERINEAEAMER
B BEXET - FBEHANALQF HE
A_E—=Ft+A+HZRAE -

TEEEREBETFTAEEMEER LB
BITERZERETRBSEHARKE
428,962,000 (Z T —=4F : &) 2 &
ReBITBERUWERIMNERFIR TN
BERRBYE T BZLBRBHRZEER -

AKRAREERE ERNBEHEARHR
BEHEHNERE  RYITERE KR
#HH AEBUWBERERZARE
W REXK- Bt R=ZB——4F+-A8
=+—H8 UERGEUBRILEKFPE
RBEMERE -
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) On 31 January 2013, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, fEAEREZE ORYI) AR 2 F] received
a writ of summons from & X B & 2 Al & 7%
Fr in relation to the full payment of a legal fee
of RMB18,000,000 for the professional services
rendered for the investigation of an investment in

the Trust Company.

The Company decided to defend against and
obtained legal advice in respect of the merits of
the claim. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that there is no reliable estimate of the
obligation and the financial effect on the earnings,
net assets and liabilities of the Company and its

subsidiaries at this stage.

45. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The balances with related parties at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements.

(b) The remuneration of directors and other members

44, HAREE (&)

0 RMRZE—=F-— H +—8  AXRaMHE
? i\éﬁﬁﬁ% HREZECRID B
TLI&@JF%IE@Eﬂﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁzuﬁ*ﬂ
Hj: NAEBEMAERERERER
T%ﬁ%Z%%HW%?&%&H%&%ﬁH/\E
#18,000,0007T, °

ARAVRERUIFAREIELFHENS
BERBR - ARREERA - HEK
RESTARBARARBRENE QR Z
W  FEENBBEROVBEZET
A A] SEfl AT

45. FAEAIRERBERS

(@) RHEH BEALXRSNHBRBECDEL
B BmMRIKE

by ZEFEREMTIBEEAEBRFAZHE

of key management during the year are as follows: R
2013 2012
—ET-=F —T—CfF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®T T ARETT
Salaries and other benefits in kind iﬁé&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ 6,586 4,920
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREAMETEIHE 255 210
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  A#Ez#E ZL/{HXT’\
ﬁ%ﬁ%miﬁﬁﬂi - 3,055

6,841 8,185
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. FENBELF
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 RZE—=Fk_T—=-F+-_A=+—HZ
and 31 December 2012 are as follows: EEWJ’;" Tn?%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ—F :
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully
incorporation/ ~ Class of shares paid capital/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation held registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BI/
e,/ BRTRMERE/
i P BN KFERGER g ARAFRRRLA TEEH
2013 2012
—E--F “EC
Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
Ef [ BE i
EERER (M) BRAA The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$60,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Design, supply and integration of
(Techwayson Industrial Limited)* R HABR 760,000,007 automation and control
(note 1) systems and property
EEREE (R BRAR: (M) investment
=k HENES BB
BHZARRIERE
Techwayson Management limted ~ HongKong  Ordinary shares 10,000 shares 100% - 100% - Provision of management services
EERERERAT &k gk of HK$1 each RUERRH
10000 EREE 1T
Techwayson Trading Limited HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 10,000 shares 100% - 100% - Trading of automation products
EEREHERAR Bk Lak of HK$1 each and electronic components
10,0005 R A% T BB ERRETECES
AR (R BRAA The PRC Contributed capital ~ RMB100,000,000 - - - 100%  Design, supply and integration of
(Techwayson Technology i HABR AK%100,000,0007 automation and control
(Shenzhen) Limited)* (note 2) systems
BRERME (R BRAR (Wik2) EE GRS
BELERIZR
Fame Electronics Limited HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 100 shares 51% - 51% - Trading of mobile phone
RRETERAA (35 LR of HK$1 each components
100REHRER T FHate
KPR ERE AR The PRC Contributed capital ~ RMB250,000,000 - - - 7%  Development of rel estate
(Zhuhai Zhongzhu Real Estate hEl BARR ABRH250,000,0007C in the PRC
Development Co., Ltd.)* (note 3) RPEERRDE
HATREHERTARAA (HH3)
& The English name is for identification purpose only. * XA E AR
Note 1: This entity established in the PRC is a wholly foreign-owned Bzt : ZEBERPENYL - BINEBELE -
enterprise.
Note 2: The entity established in the PRC is a wholly foreign-owned fiaE2 : ZEBNPBEKY - SINESBELE AN
enterprise and was disposed on 30 April 2013. = —=—FUA=F+HEE -
Note 3: The entity established in the PRC is a sino-foreign joint a3 ZEBRRTEMRY  BPIIGERE YN
venture and was disposed on 28 June 2013. T—=F A=+ NBAEE -
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group to give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

46. FEMEB AT (&)
LRABEARRIESERAFTEFELERE
EvAEENRBARER  AAREER AT
HEHBARERESERBRATLE -

AN B A RE AT F AR RS
EAAEEERES -

REGER  ARREHAEBMETBEEEL
HMBE AR - ZFMBRARZHNEL LT
BEE - ZEMBARZ ERXEBHMANT

Number of subsidiaries

EXES FTEEXEME MEARHE
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——4F
Investment holding Hong Kong
REFERR E 3 7
The PRC
] 1 -
4 7
Property investment Hong Kong
MERE BB 1 1
Inactive Hong Kong
e B
10

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

FERFEHMENZFZENBAT ZF4

NRIVRBEEAHEFI MR cAKEBIEEE
KB ARZFEAER

Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation and interests and voting rights Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business held by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interest
] RS- £,50 FENMBRAGRAZRFARLS  SETFHEAMEEZER EAFRELER
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z3-cF 3—F ZE-cF 5= ZE-cf -
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEBTT ARETR ARBT R ARETR
Fame Electronics Limited Hong Kong and the PRC
SRETARLA BARTE 49% 49% (249) (2,049) (4329) (1,834)
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

46. FEMEB AT (&)
BE A MRS Y N E BB AR BB
ERBEEHNNT - L THBERREAEE
MR SHSHATZ &5 o

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Fame Electronics Limited RMB’000 RMB’000
REBETFHARAF] AR®T T ARETT
Current assets mENEE 3,715 13,894
Non-current assets ERBEE - —
Current liabilities mEERE (12,701) (17,959)
Non-current liabilities FEMEBBIE - -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &) 7 A A FEIHAERS (4,583) (2,073)
Non-controlling interests eS| MR (4,403) (1,992)
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Revenue A 33,700 67,132
Expenses R (38,790) (71,313)
Loss for the year FNERE (5,090) (4,181)
Loss for the year attributable to owners RRBIZHEBA
of the Company FE1S A E1E (2,596) (2,132)
Loss for the year attributable to the TP R
non-controlling interests FE(S F AE1E (2,494) (2,049)
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year (5,090) (4,181)
Total comprehensive expense for the year KNABZHEB A
attributable to owners of the Company EEFRZERAS B (2,596) (2,132)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEFES MR A
attributable to the non-controlling interests EHFERNEEmATERE (2,494) (2,049)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FANEEMAZEHE (5,090) (4,181)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from REFH RS
operating activities () AR (3,993) 3,243
Net cash inflow from investing activities RE T 7 HERAEEE 360 326
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEEES R F5E - (12)
Net cash (outflow) inflow BHe ORM) RAFHE (3.633) 3,557

169



170

China Uptown Group Company Limited R F# %@ AR A a Annual Report 2013 &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &HEZE - —=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

47. ARRQATFHBEARRE

2013 2012
—E—=fF ———F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFTR AREFIT
Non-current asset EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2I&E 477,167 477,167
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB A RIR 5K (a) 135,963 177,848
Other receivables H i W SR8 172 -
Refundable deposit paid Al EIE
for a possible acquisition ENTRERS 140,000 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERES 1,641 36
277,776 177,884
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H fth f& < 5RI8 459 2,545
Amounts due to subsidiaries U NGB O (a) 726,763 139,019
Convertible bonds AR E S = 132,405
Consideration payable FERRAE = 48,815
727,222 322,784
Net current liabilities mEEEFE (449,446) (144,900)
27,721 332,267
Capital and reserves BAR N
Ordinary share capital TR AR A 88,424 88,424
Convertible redeemable Al EEa ] & o
preference shares B 152,006 152,006
Reserves Gt (b) (212,709) (87,945)
Total equity L 27,721 152,485
Non-current liability ERBEE
Consideration payable FER (B = 179,782
27,721 332,267

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

B
@ B () HEARRE

ZEFRAREER THERNFEREEE -
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

47. AR THMBEARRE (&)

Notes: (Continued) PisE : (8)
(b) Reserves (b) e
Share Exchange
Share Contributed options  translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EME BABH BRERE B 5 A RitEE M
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
(note i)
(GiE3))
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZT——%—H—H 386,529 67,614 13,988 6,643 (556,036) (81,262)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEREARSAE
expense for the year - - - 3,184 (39,064) (35,880)
Recognition of equity-settled DA R 45 5 2 LARR (R
share-based payment expenses AR (RIS HER - - 3,742 - - 3,742
Lapse of share options FERL G SR - - (9,673) - 9,673 -
Issue of shares upon conversion BRI T IED]
of convertible redeemable BERBETRD
preference shares 25,455 - - - - 25,455
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZB——F+-fA=+—H 411,984 67,614 8,057 9,827 (585,427) (87,945)
Loss and total comprehensive FRABEREARZEE
expense for the year - - - 6,243 (131,007) (124,764)
Lapse of share options BRI - - (4,314) - 4314 -
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=%f+=A=+—H 411,984 67,614 3,743 16,070 (712,120) (212,709)
Note:
BT -
(i) Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by (i) RARBABRIERRAFEETEBR 2 EENR

the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 16 January 2001.

RER_ZT—F— A+ B zEEEABK
MAESHBERRZEEFEMEZEMR -
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ﬁ‘ﬁ‘ﬂf%tﬁ%%/ﬁ RMFERR R

At 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+=-A=

A. PROPERTIES IN THE PRC A. URHBIZYZE
Lease Group's
Location Usage Area term interest
A48
ks il A% HEH b ER
Land Parcel No. T205-0035 located at Hi-tech Industrial Park, Office premises and car Site area - Medium 100%
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC parking spaces approximately 8,159 sg. m.
HEIEREARMELESHRE R LR ETENEREES AT - #18,159F AR g
1R57T205-00354) 13t
Gross floor area -
approximately 17,677 5. m.
BEEBETE - 117,677 A
B. PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. UREBERBZYE
Approximate Lease Group's
Location Usage saleable area term interest
piN-3 |
2 B& BRTHERS HEH FEfL R
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Office premises — 242.01 sg. m. Medium 100%
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon. Own use
RADEEFBEIRIAERL—E1521501F BTEME -8R 242.01F 5K ]
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